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Harmony House was established in 1985 as the first shelter for
abused women and their children in Hong Kong. Today, we
have developed into a one-stop anti-domestic violence service
agency, with a wide range of preventive, therapeutic and
developmental programmes to help families affected by
domestic violence. We also organise community education
programmes, promote harmonious and healthy family
relationships, provide training to multi-disciplinary and
advocate for policies and legislations on behalf of victims of
violence, their families and communities.

We believe that all human beings have the right to live with
dignity and respect and to be free from violence, abuse and
coercion. Human rights should be preserved in our homes as
well as in our society.

We believe equality and mutual respect are fundamental
principles for a healthy and harmonious family.

We strongly oppose the use of violence as a means of
control.

We are dedicated to helping victims of domestic violence to
resume dignity over their own lives.

A Aharmonious and stable community built on sound family
values of harmony, care, mutual respect and responsibility.

A A community for "Zero Tolerance to Domestic Violence".

A A community that can protect the abused and provide an
environment that nurtures emotionally strong individuals
who can contribute to society.

To tackle the social problems of domestic violence using
diverse approaches, and promote harmonious and healthy
relationships in families with a comprehensive range of
preventive and therapeutic services.

To reach out to families in need through counselling and
crisis intervention.

To change the misconceptions and incorrect attitudes
towards domestic violence through community education,
impart appropriate knowledge and skills to handle domestic
violence.

A To protect and empower women, men and children who are
victims of domestic violence and help them to establish
their self-esteem and confidence.

A To counsell and give guidance to batterers on how to break the
vicious cycle of violence and eliminate the harm to the family.

A To establish, promote and educate professional bodies and
the community on the importance of family harmony.
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As we conclude another year, it is with immense pride that | present my remarks for our annual report. This year, our
focus is on a theme that resonates deeply with all of us: Child Protection. Every child deserves to grow up in a safe and
loving environment. Unfortunately, family violence may occur as a silent endemic, affecting families across all
demographics, regardless of background, economic status or location.

The Alarming Reality

We have witnessed a troubling rise in child abuse reports. According to the Social Welfare Department Child
Protection Registry Statistical Report, the number of child abuse cases has surged by over 50%, increasing from 940
cases in 2020 to 1,457 cases in 2023. The breakdown of these cases reveals that:

»  Physical Abuse: 41%

«  Sexual Abuse: 35%

*  Neglect: 21%

These figures are not mere statistics but indicating real lives, real trauma and real call for rescue, help and prevention.

Our Commitment to Change

To foster the healthy development of future generations, it is vital for community stakeholders to create supportive
environment that place child safety at high priority. With the ongoing support of the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities
Trust, Bank of China Hong Kong Centennial Charitable Foundation, and various other funders, we have made
significant strides in our child protection initiatives over the past year.

We have implemented a diverse range of services including:
«  Children's Emotion Education

«  Parental Education

«  Stress-relief Activities

Parent-child Activities

These programmes have reached over 9,600 students and parents. Not only do the programmes equip children with
the knowledge to understand their emotion and develop self-protection skills, but empowering parents to acquire
compassionate communication, empathy, positive parenting and self-care awareness. Evidently, education, training and
good practice are the effective 3-pronged approach to prevent child abuse.

Collaborative Efforts

Our commitment to protecting children from harm extends to collaboration with relevant government departments,
NGOs, and academic institutions. This year, we provided nearly 50 training and sharing sessions for 106 organisations,
accomplishing training for over 1,300 professionals, including teachers, social workers, counsellors, and healthcare
practitioners from Hong Kong, Mainland and Macau. These stakeholders have attained higher competence to identify
and intervene in cases of child abuse.

Advocacy and Future Directions

It is our mission to advocate for constant improvement in policies, funding, and support system for families in need.
Looking ahead, we will focus on expanding our prevention programmes, particularly those addressing the unique
challenges faced by marginalized communities, especially ethnic minority families. Our goal is to cultivate an
environment where every child feels safe, supported, and valued.

Gratitude

Finally, | should extend my earnest appreciation to each of our funders, donors, corporate partners, board members,
volunteers and staff for the invaluable and unwavering dedication to our mission. Together, we shall endeavor to
"Helping Victims, Saving Lives, Training Professionals and Eliminating Domestic Violence"!

Dr. Kam Chak Wah
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To review the past year, | filled with gratitude and reflection on the incredible journey | have taken at
Harmony House. It is an honor to review and report the progress and performance of all services.

Our Shelter for Women and Children plays a vital role in
providing immediate safety, support and resources for abused
women and their children. We continued to maintaining a
high standard of 24-hour emergency service for 330 women
and children. Besides the case admissions, we have totally
received over 8,400 calls through our 24-hour Women
Hotline for crisis counselling and emotional support, of which
30% of the families were admitted at midnight and 6,338 calls
are related to domestic abuse. We believe our hotline is
crucial to provide around the clock support for female in
crisis and offer them for help at the moments of desperation
when they need support the most.

With the grant from the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities
Trust, a new project "Jockey Club Project Harmony Bubbles"
for early identification of families with at-risk child abuse
issues was launched in October last year. The project
provided edge-cutting children therapeutic and parenting
groups with many positive responses, the total number of
parents and children served is over 220 group sessions and
1,500 participants. In addition, we reached out to 4,663
children through our emotion education programmes, which
we have provided risk assessments of domestic violence for
2,475 children. Among them, we found that 66% and 40% of
them had witnessed their parents quarrelling and fighting
respectively, and 58% and 71% of them reported they had
been physically abused and verbally abused by their parents
respectively. At the same time, we also conducted a survey
on perceived burnout of 488 parents. The results revealed
that 31% of the respondents experienced moderate levels of
burnout, with 7% classified as severe. These figures reflected
more education services should be provided to parents on
positive parenting techniques, stress management, and
self-care practices to prevent child abuse at home settings.

The "Jockey Club Project Stride" was in its second year of
operation. During the year, we were delighted to see that the
"Family Channel" becomes popular among the public. 57
online talks were provided through the Channel with 4,450
audiences. This result was so encouraging. Our Online
Reading Club was also very popular. Through reading and
sharing good reference books, all participants will learn to
utilize external resources for self-improvement and gaining
insights of the complexities and impact of their family of
origin upon their different life stages. These programmes are
powerful to join people with adverse childhood experiences
for mutual support and empowerment. We will continue to
launch these effective tools to reach out more potential
service users to scale up its impact and combating the
intergenerational cycle of violence through holistic services in
the community.

Men support service is one of our paramount concern to
foster the vision of family harmony and zero tolerance of
domestic violence. We are grateful to the funding support
from the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust, the "Jockey
Club Project Ocean: Men Support Service" was launched on 1
December 2023. In this project, we are utilizing an outreach
and online service mode to reach out to more men and
motivate them to seek assistance from social service units.
Our main objective is to support men in building resilience
and enhancing their interpersonal relationship skills, as well
as to screen for cases with potential needs so that they can
receive appropriate social services in a timely manner. In view
of limited accommodation service for male in the society, for
who are being affected by domestic violence or experiencing
emotional distress caused by family conflicts, we would

provide a short term hotel accommodation and referral
support for them. Counselling services would also be
rendered to helping them improve their personal and family
relationships.

The Phase Four Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
Community Project Grant: Moving Forward Against Domestic
Violence Project was in its final year of operation. Same as
the past three phases, we continued to provide three levels
of intervention services through online and offline means.
Over 380 sessions of counselling and therapeutic group
services were offered for families at risk of domestic violence
and more than 700 participants were served. In the
community education service, we held multi-disciplinary
trainings and community education programmes for
professionals and the public, with a total of 141,000 person
times was served in last year. We have educated families to
alert the warning signs of domestic violence and child abuse
and be aware of help seeking at an early stage of family
conflicts. We are proud of the positive impact has been made
in the community by this project. The new phase of 3-year
project would be launched on 1 April 2024. We look forward
to enhancing the service outcomes of this project in the
years to come.

The "40 Minutes @ Harmony Space" Project sponsored by
the Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited was also carried out
successfully in its final year. During the year, 320 sessions of
casework counselling were provided to local and ethnic
minority families in Yuen Long and 105 sessions of group on
emotional awareness and compassionate communication
education were organised for children, parents and couples,
benefiting nearly 670 participants. In addition, we have been
committed to promote inclusive education services in Yuen
Long by providing different activities for multi-cultural
community and more than 1,600 participants were served. By
enhancing the promotion of compassionate communication
in the community, families can cultivate an environment
where compassionate communication flourishes,
strengthening their bonds and enhancing understanding
among family members. To sustain the continuous promotion
of non-violent communication, we target to seek alternative
funding to support this meaningful service in the northern
part of New Territories.

Looking ahead, we remain steadfast in our commitment to
fighting domestic violence and child abuse. Early intervention
can lead to significant reductions in instances of abuse. We
plan to develop and implement more preventative
programmes aimed at educating at-risk populations about
healthy family relationships, conflict resolution, and coping
mechanisms. We will also continue to foster community
partnerships and engage different corporates and
organisations in our efforts to raise awareness and support
for survivors. Together, we can build a robust supportive
network for affected families.

| would like to express my deepest gratitude to everyone
involved with Harmony House. Our funders, board members,
committee members, collaborative partners, volunteers, and
staffs are the heart of our organisation. Your compassion,
tireless efforts and commitment to our mission make all of
our achievements possible. Thank you again for your ongoing
support and dedication. We will continue to transform lives,
foster dignity, and ensure that every person who comes
through our doors feels valued, supported, and empowered.

Mrs. Doris S.Y. LEE
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FEUTENENIE | BE0E [RH Part-time Program Assistant: Caroline S.M. Milburn  Maggie M.K. Chan
F05E1E Harmony Lane
STEIELE | =EM Project Supervisor: Joanne K.Y. Lee HEAE
METEE  RmER Social Worker: Vivienne W.Y. Ng Website Visits o
8 OBER | BEE Counselling Psychologist: Kenny K. K. Yeung @
LEECHS I *%%Z%; e Counsellor: Yo KY. Yeung ' Carmen KY. Lee F0 2R ‘I 09 OO O
ﬁﬁfﬁi\f* Kaydence W.S. Chiu Harmony House 9
JEBNENIE | BIFKF Program Assistant: Ruby W. L. Lau [REEHE & Instagram iR A S
ik E=ER Driver: Marco CW. Li BESES LI 20 8 O O Reaches on Facebook Page & Instagram
Jockey Club Project Stride 9
S A .
FOFEREEZER] Family Harmony Space F0s 5 .
. ErEe o Eape <
STEIEME : RIS Project Supervisor: Cecilia S.H. Ho Jgoff;' CIiJHi?ri%;JrEBIJubbles - 5 1 O O Harmony House Family Harmony Space
HEIEE BTFE Social Worker: Leo T.l. Yeung ! / / ) 29‘] 5 O O 22 8 O O
ES . frEaf Counsellor: Stephanie W.T. Yuen O — ) )
EEENIE ¢ REKE  Madhav M. Thapa Program Assistant: Daisy W.Y. Ng Madhav M. Thapa ig%%fjfgj@:ﬁjif Space 3 60 O
FE__MTA . FBK Part-time Workman [I: Man C.M. Yu rr )
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SHELTER FOR WOMEN AND CHILDREN

IR S R SEZEIE PROFILE OF WOMEN HOTLINE CALLERS

#ist4Lo48{BERRER NABRABYBIRRE

Statistics of 948 Hotline Callers Related to Domestic Violence
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PR#¥E B 4E SERVICE OBJECTIVES

b BEERLRABRUR SRS NIRRT

h RIERRERHNEZ RERFEIRH24/)\ K ENE;

TRRENIRE -
&> HENZER L ERERR BT o

WY ERRERRERNTENRERRRERD
R o

IRFEA A SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS

Provide a safe emergency refuge centre for abused
women and their children.

Offer 24-hour immediate support and referral
services to families and intimate partners affected by
domestic violence.

Empower abused women, help them restore their
dignity and establish harmonious relationships.

Protect and address the needs of children affected by
or have been witnessing domestic violence.

01> 24N\ESFLREBH IR B BREARTS 24-hour Women Hotline and Follow-up Services

24 NEF IR LR BNEAIR S 1986 F 8% 17 » B IER R EE
FRNHBEREBHKEE > RHENEIBEIR R
8 0 7£2023/245F [ » BURHIEFES 404EKBNE
55 BPKIT5% (B06,33818) AR RERIIERE ;
MERHEEIBOBRELL REZBHAREN AL
P o FH EPEERE (30%) BFRA
E6Y > o] R24/ NS EMRRE MR BN R IR 23K ©

B2003F107 1 » 2RBHEKREERE AZE
P ORBRZ ISR IROVE ER IR M5
S ERREWERERT > BNZ BRI E
S iRHERS » MR MIB RESR DK BHIRENR
A o FJPIEFHEC2EFBIRIRIREE S

Our 24-hour women hotline has been providing
immediate emotional support and counselling to
callers affected by domestic violence since 1986. In
2023/24, 8,404 calls were received and around 75%
(6,338 calls) were related to domestic violence. From
these calls, 330 women and their children were
admitted to our shelter, of which 62 families (30%)
were admitted at midnight. These figures show that
the 24-hour hotline service plays a significant role in
providing round-the-clock immediate protection for
battered women and their children.

Since October 2003, the hotline service has been
modified to include follow-up services for phone-in
victims who did not feel the need to take refuge in
the shelter but were still in need of other supportive
services. Accordingly, these non-residential service
users received emotional support and psychosocial
counselling. This has helped them re-establish social
support networks, heightened their awareness of
domestic violence, and enhanced their knowledge of
self-protection. Last year, we provided follow-up
services via the hotline to 62 new clients.

1R K 53 & e 3% 90 SHELTER FOR WOMEN AND CHILDREN

FH#5 Age

2055504 T Aged 20 or below

21%305% Aged 21-30 24 (2.5%)
94 (9.9%)

A5¥/ TEF Unknown/N.A. .
399 (42.1%)

31 F405% Aged 31-40
179 (18.9%)

R 41E507% Aged 41-50
126 (13.3%)

615830 I Aged 61 or above

. 51%E60#% Aged 51-60

PEARHR R Marital Status

BE4& Married
424 (44.7%)

[G]/& Cohabited
°
16 (1.7%)

B8/ /B Divorced/Separated B 5 Single
°
44 (4.6%) 61 (6.4%)
. 7818 Widowed
11 (1.2%) REF/ B Unknown/N.A.
°

392 (41.4%)

1R R R EED O SHELTER FOR WOMEN AND CHILDREN 13
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FB1X[&15 Residential District (560 E]&& Responses) HErE & 812 [BIR L BIRf{%R Perpetrators’ Relationship with Abused Women

97 HAth Others
LR Girlfriend °

¢ 0,
2 (0.9%) 27 (12.5%)

100

i
)
XA
o
ot
&

< s 20 (9.3%)
é . F2Z Children
% 13 (6%) .k Husband R
i , B Bxcboyhiend 130 (60.2%)
b 1(0.5%)
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§7K Ex-husband
°

7 (3.2%)
B A& Boyfriend R
16 (7.4%)
02> [FEEIETBARTE Refuge Service IR BN E B B EES Age of Women and Perpetrators
[T #%% Women
FEEPLORBIIMEEBN > BRERBUKRETLIE  Ourshelter provides 73 emergency refuge to | EZ@% Perpetrators

RSB IEREE LR B R a His  battered women and their children to alleviate the 80
15 5 SRR IR DA REIBME o 7£2023/24 trauma from their endangered circumstances. In
ERE > HE09E8RER121EF e AMEEE 2023/24, 209 women ar}1d 121 children checked into
our shelter. Our Shelter’s occupancy rate averaged

P 2EFIRMAECE © 68% throughout the year.

AZEEEDPOVIZFEEFl PROFILE OF SHELTER RESIDENTS - WOMEN

Bt H209B A EEEPOBIREL

Statistics of 209 Women Newly Admitted in Shelter

{BZEIF Number of Cases

{BZ 485! Case Nature

20U T 21E305% 31E405% 41E505% 51Z605% 61U TeF/ B
EH{hZFREEE S Other Domestic Violence Aged 20 or below  Aged 21-30 Aged 31-40 Aged 41-50 Aged 51-60 Aged 61 or above Unknown/N.A.
°
55 (26.3%)
HERRERS
Intimate Partner Relationship Abuse
°
154 (73.7%)

14 HuRkRBFEDD SHELTER FOR WOMEN AND CHILDREN 1F L REBFeE D0 SHELTER FOR WOMEN AND CHILDREN 15



HEr20013 AMEmREE Bt H 195 SIELRBE

-

% Statistics of 200 Questionnaires Completed by Shelter Residents Statistics of 195 Questionnaires Completed by Discharged Women

XA

s

ot

&t R FELFHA Duration of Abuse B S EFHEMEKR Marital Status at the Time of Discharge

i

)

= o (o
A (R BER) SREHEES

REF/AHER Unknown/N.A.
20 (10%)

Reunion with Intimate Partners

27 (13.8%)

N.A. (Not intimate partner violence)

37 (19%)
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—FLLF Less than 1 Year REE Unk
° ~EF Unknown MBFBGERIE/AF
52 (26%) ¢ 18 (9 Zty) Separated with Intimat7e7 Par/tners
. (o] o
HEFLLE Over 7 Years 20 (10.3%)
[ ]
0,
>4 (27 A) HA Others
J— pu— L
FE=F1 to3Years. 3 (15%)
33 (1 65%) B4 Divorced R
59 (30.3%)
—FEEF 3107 Years . FIRTE Undecided
[}
41 (20.5%) 31 (15.9%)
(R E ‘b
e CEUHUE T Emsiansia-af
ARRERREEEEFFL/RENH N (BIEHEE « Biek/HMEER) (CIEESIR) Woemde oy g e sy OF W
Types of Child Maltreatment Caused by Perpetrators Reported by Shelter Residents (Including Physical, R T X s aELOEN
Psychological and/or Sexual Abuse) (More than one choice may be selected) A ;"F ; ',Eii‘.l.! %Miﬁ v hrkmum...
o i .
3 T EY M S e S
80 iT-Brd ri:_f?f’- i
70 I A % '.
| e | .
60 ! m i
9; 50 r = T ;
: HA o NEITT S g wapafl MEARL
E 40 'fjﬁi'“u"fi S GEE L o} ?‘gtﬂ’]f.qi_}:ﬁj'a_mé :;,'i‘]l"_.;.*-j
z N irgs]iﬂ i _3?,\3:*1?*‘*'&&;'&4
i AT AT i
ﬁ 30 e -I‘-q l-ll.-" ik . .q 'y
@ a2
20
10
1
0
FRER TR TS HER REBBRE T/ E
Physical Abuse  Psychological Abuse  Sexual Abuse Did Not Witness Unknown/N.A.
Domestic Violence

16 74K REFED () SHELTER FOR WOMEN AND CHILDREN 1F L REBFEE D0 SHELTER FOR WOMEN AND CHILDREN 17



i
pay
XA
S
Bt

be[]

I
~

AZEEEDPOREZ ¥ PROFILE OF SHELTER CHILDREN

BEte3MAERERE

Statistics of 63 Questionnaires Completed by Children Admitted in the Shelter

REBHRERNNER (TRESHA

Types of Abuse Witnessed by Children (More than one choice may be selected)

40

35

30

26

BZEF Number of Cases

0

FRER FETRETT MERS HEBERRE TEF/ B
Physical Abuse  Psychological Abuse  Sexual Abuse Did Not Witness Unknown/N.A.
Domestic Violence

REBRRBOFERIE (CIEEZIA

Emotional Response of Children Witnessing Domestic Violence (More than one choice may be selected)

40
35 33
30 ——
%
g 25 —
c
3
5o — T
i
s 15—
ik
=
10 —
5 > 4
0 1
£ JEE EE)/ARFAE BREMNTE Hitl
Scared Angry Helpless/At a loss No Response/ Others
As Usual

&)

REBEREBNITRRE (IREFESIH)

Behavioural Response of Children Witnessing Domestic Violence (More than one choice may be selected)

30
25
25 ——
g 20
& 20 ——
s
g
E 15—
z
%
10
10 ——
g
0o —
1 3
0
grogt BN/ RERER  1RBh/fREE ST B Ib ik B @HRRED
Withdrawn Help/ Help/ (FTEAH) (h0#BfE ~ RE)
Protect Mother Protect Siblings Antagonize  Seek Help from Others

Father (e.g. Neighbour, Police)

RERRGEZRERNNEEAE (EEZIR)
Types of Abuse Reported by Children (More than one choice may be selected)

30
27

25 24
i
5 20 ——
G
3 15
E 5
z
it
i
J 10 ——
=

0o—

3
0
0
S8 o EfF MEER BAWER &/ TEA
Physical Abuse  Psychological Abuse  Sexual Abuse Did Not Unknown/N.A.
Being Abused

1R K B E £/ SHELTER FOR WOMEN AND CHILDREN
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BXRKHEARTFS Casework and Counselling Services

% B8 ENEL N
SH&E*’?}SU Number of Number of Number of
S Case(s) Session(s) Attendance
FRERHS
Counselling for Women 219 1,366 1,366
REEREHE
Counselling for Children 12 38 38
REEHE
Counselling for Women and their Children 12 45 102
B=EEN
Referral to Other Professional Service 134 134 134

7B \VBARTS Therapeutic Group Services

ARFE 28R MESE

Number of

Service Type Group(s)

ENEx

Number of
Session(s)

AR
Number of
Attendance

im2e R ME
Therapeutic Group for Women | 14 55 248
RELEIE | o 0 -

Therapeutic Group for Children

IEEE ~ ARETRIE T SRR ETSH)
Organising parent-child activity for family celebration on Easter,
Mother’s Day and Dragon Boat Festival

IR R R EFEE 0 SHELTER FOR WOMEN AND CHILDREN

RIE M) RSt AaRE N

Children learned emotion management skills through croissant baking

BBEZTHEFRIEE

Soothing stress through gardening

EEFEERNEE

Chinese New Year celebration activities

TR R R E D0 SHELTER FOR WOMEN AND CHILDREN 21
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52 EBBRAARTS Childcare Support Service SR EBRARBERBR MekfE) I/

Aftercare Mutual Support and “Women Ambassador” Volunteer Groups

BNRTREERKEPONRERRKE » [ki&8  To enhance support to children and their mothers
MR ERBEERY » LUSRIEL O ERBEE during their temporary stay at the shelter, we provide

»

»
ﬁ
X
S
o
m

%)
T
m
5
m
FEAR -
FHES > RO M TR EEEA SR o & childcare services to help reduce parenting stress and B BhRARERR TS g= l\ﬁ"n;‘ber,of 8
ol - — N allow the admitted women having time to settle their Mutual Support Services Quantity Attendance 2
)EE' FERISTREARERABMES matters. During the year, we recorded 1,817 times of N : g
c service usage. BESTAME/\E / EBN/VE / 5 AEFIIHR 24 85 / sessions 189 2
Pre-discharge Group / Mutual Support Group / Skills Training 2
>
=

AR E) 156 /]\EFF / hours 59 5REZE / families %
Peer Support -
#H B KB EE Educational and Developmental Programmes TR , =

P & 366 I8 / items 121
Resources Matching a =
m
. tEREED . =

ARFSAER By AR ! . 5 7% / times 487

Service Type Number of Session(s) Number of Attendance Sonmmuiiy Eeveziion Progemms
= N
B EE : %E%%Z BRATES) : . 6 2% / times 190
EE 50 1037 Parenting Educational and Parent-child Activity
House Meeting for Women ’
= S B S1ERTH 7 2% / times 230
REHS 50 564 Social / Developmental / Training Programme for Ex-residents
House Meeting for Children
HERBRTH 19 316
Educational and Developmental Activities

B SR IREARTS Aftercare Follow-up Services

Rt SR IRERTS RE

Aftercare Follow-up Services Frequency

ERERAS | BRI 764
Follow-up Contact: Telephone Contact
Rh 30 HEBLR AT LA PG —RRER T I — TR EH
Home Visit Ex-residents enjoyed a barbecue party before Mid-Autumn Festival
H AR EHE
220
Collateral Contact
1R 3
Referral Service

Bt SRS N0EEF kiRt EB R MV LR
BE) AR

Discharged women enjoyed a flower wreath-making
activity, sponsored by the Wan Chai Rotary Club, to
celebrate Chinese New Year

22 R4 R 5SREFEDD SHELTER FOR WOMEN AND CHILDREN TR R R EED () SHELTER FOR WOMEN AND CHILDREN 23



ERAERELEERGE — By R RZEHIEE

?ﬁ . AR 75285 l\lljlzﬁfb%lrgof Kﬂ:ﬁbéeﬁ%f Nuﬁb;zr of
! THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB COMMUNITY PROJECT GRANT: Service Type Groun) Secsion() e o
8l MOVING FORWARD AGAINST DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PROJECT e — , 0 -
1 Group for Male Abusers
% \ ZILERRAE/ME ; o -
2!1 HE}% =] *% SERVICE OBJECTIVES \ Group for Women Using Force
o Oo— wHZEETRNE , . .
+ Supportive Group for Female Survivors
> B NRERERNHOBELTE R © Enhance public awareness of domestic violence and £SEEE /A
prevention education. Group for People with Mutual Violence 2 8 51

with Intimate Partners

BRABEXALTEE  —EEFRERERNHE  Collaborate with multi-disciplinary to tackle domestic
° violence. R EHER R IR/ E 1 6 30

Parenting Group for Parent Using Violence

REBERERCE/E

fa 2

BB EZRARFFGFERMRERIIERUGE -

Advocate for improvement of existing policies and

service systems related to domestic violence. Therapeutic Group for Children 2 12 58
Witnessing Domestic Violence
S+HEME 1 3 18

Mutual Support Group for Men
IREHR) LT EEME

Mutual Support Group for Women

IR ARSI/ e 5 1 67

Mental Wellness Management Group

support and education.

EYEENEMPINRNITREREE -

Help batterers change their violent behaviour and
attitude.

EHBEBRERIHEWNRE » EMANTT B Help children who have witnessed domestic violence
EPOIBEREFTHNE o

b BHERIEHESZR  BREZENNEFERE Empower survivors of domestic violence through

recover from their traumatic experience.
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03» %A EE Multiple Educational Programmes

IRFEAZS SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS

1> BEREHEIRFS Casework and Counselling Services

BN REARENARE > HMFIFHF/NER  To prevent domestic violence and provide early
MR > FETRENISEABTIRG » 2282 intervention, we visited primary and secondary
SR T E IR (R AN TE RS 0 0 DU I A schools, as well as kindergartens, to educate students
RG> AR A NS T RESHEEY about emotions through various emotional education

£2023/245%E > HMEHEB103BEREMEE  In2023/24, we had 103 cases and provided 103 services. The programmes aimed to enhance their

309EIMEERRTS > B AE T ETES « &t individual counselling sessions for male abusers, understanding of emotions and assisted students in

FEEHE LHEGEREERERE o woman victims and children who witnessed domestic learning the proper ways to express them, thereby

violence. fostering harmonious interpersonal relationships. We
also identify students who were affected by domestic
violence through screening questionnaires.

X3 =
BEgo

02> IMATIE Group Work
KPR MRETE > BARABNRER Additionally, we organised family activities to

BPRBLHES - KIEERARNHE - uLE=F We provided therapeutic groups for male abusers, NRABENEGES ; /e EERRIp LR IREE enhance intimacy among family members and

B XEBARNRREREBERZRERMS
BMENEARTS - B FIRA BN RER NBISEER
RIBIFHEBIRE S o NEBEBSEN AT AR
RELENTR  HHREBNEBRERETH
BiE 0 EEREBTR > BREEHEQRBHE
7 ERERIR o

female using force, female survivors, couples with
mutual violence, parents, and children who witness
domestic violence. The groups aimed to enhance
their awareness of family violence and their ability to
manage emotions. We used various methods to help
abusers improved their behaviour, assisted victims
and children who witnessed domestic violence in
expressing their emotions and overcoming trauma,
and equipped parents with positive parenting skills to
improve family relationships.

24 BESNHE—LRERS

/Ly JOCKEY CLUB HARMONY LINK DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PREVENTION CENTRE

B> REHRBAPERHERTEHEIRMHEES
AR o

increase positive interactions within the family. We
also held legal consultation seminars to provide
advisory services to users facing legal difficulties
which are related to family issue.

BEESE—LRE BT JOCKEY CLUB HARMONY LINK DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PREVENTION CENTRE 25



AR75%E%) HEHE ik AR

Number of Number of Number of

Service Type Organisation(s) Session(s) Attendance

=)
g

SH
]

e RIS EAEARES VA
|rv Legal Consultation Seminar for NA 3 60
S Service Users
ol BB SH (WHR)
il Emotional Education Programme 9 16 445
Pw:l; (Kindergarten) ;
2 1SS S (\2) BB B TR
=, Emotional Education Programme 8 27 603 Women expressed their feelings through art work
= (Primary School)

TR ERIBE (PR)

Dating Violence Prevention Talk

4 6 491 BIHRTITEE - ARESZTRANETEN

Organising family trips for families to enjoy precious

(Secondary School) parent-child moments
REXiR/VE
Children Supportive Group NA 12 63
FIEER RS EN
Family Harmony Adventure Activity NA 3 83
REBMRZIREH NA 5 77 SBYREARE > QRRERIR

Survivors’ Social Support Programme Organising talks for families to enrich family relationships
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TENEEHET BB EEE » ERER
HEBEENEEEERBHBRENSE
Conducting emotional education
activities in kindergarten to help children
recognise various emotions and learn
positive ways to handle them

W PIERR S BRIMFFT RN R —F
Women made cheering cards on New Year’s Eve to welcome
their new year

B Z BV GEB TR BADETRREIIRRE S
Overwhelmed and stressed-out women relieved stress through
stretching in nature

B/ R AHNEEE) o BB EIRGE
895 > WG AP B EIFHR B

Through storytelling group activities, children
experienced joyful moments and learnt to relieve
emotions from the stories

Rr—RAREZERE > BREMSESKMIR

TR

Creating more opportunities for parents and children
BRI E D Z e ERER R FBE NIRRT RS R R spending quality time together by making happy windmill
Sharing with male group members how to promote family Expanding social networks and releasing stress for women
relationships through a summer outing

26 EESNE—DLRE BP0 JOCKEY CLUB HARMONY LINK DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PREVENTION CENTRE BESMNE—DRENAD JOCKEY CLUB HARMONY LINK DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PREVENTION CENTRE 27



itRHE
COMMUNITY EDUCATION

PR#¥E B4Z SERVICE OBJECTIVES

b RARKRATHRERI8EDE o Raise public awareness of domestic violence.

112=}
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BIMARHEEE > NRARHRER HRE0HEEMNEREN S
We held public educational talks to raise public awareness of
domestic violence and promote the message of family harmony

I
~

b HEENHRS B BHBIAIEEL (% © Promote neighbourhood support for building

harmonious relationships in the community.

BEHERKFIELNSNE  Ef IREZNHSES Advocate positive changes in policies and systems that
2 B © implement “Zero Tolerance to Domestic Violence”.
b MR TE - B8 ERMEREMR ° Promote gender equality, mutual respect and

harmony in families.

BARNNIMAESRHNSEREEATRM
TR

Professional training for local, Macau and
Mainland college students and professionals

BRFEA A SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS

01> ZTHBEEFE Multiple Educational Programmes

—
O]
@)
~
m
<
(@)
=
C
s 9)
I
>
~
<
o
Z
<
=
Z
~
O
o
<
m
(%]
|
@)
=
o
=
m
Z
@)
m
0
X
m
<
m
Z
4
o
Z
(@)
m
Z
_|
X
m

AR#5%ER! HiBssa BN AR

Number of Number of Number of

Service Type Organisation(s) Session(s) Attendance

it R B S
(BEERRELAREES  ARHAB
B RBHERE)

Community Education Programmes
(including on-site and online large-scale
events, public educational talks, and
exhibitions on service promotion)

25 5751 =555
Training for Multi-disciplinary / 10 230

16 34 141,091 )
M2 RRGHERE

Exhibition promoting the Harmony House services

U B E EEASHIRRE

EERSEHANNESSNR—ORAHAPO Promotion of our hotlines in
T IRA SRR different languages

Jockey Club staff visited the Jockey Club

Harmony Link Domestic Violence Prevention Centre
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Forum on “Parental Emotional Education - New Driving Force by Multi-disciplinary”

EE - BACNMBABENT [(RRBEHE -8 -
- e ] BERE 0 T ESERISRS
BUIBREMEBERBES > URHAZELE
NERDEE—T X RZERERREUAD EER
B TFERESNENBLEEXREE - TE
REMETFRMSTHERBEBHRGRE
B XFet URELEEGPHAEREFS
REBIHRE  HEER HBANHBER—
EERETWOEIEBREARRIEEEENES  BE
BHE  AERBEEORFBER > HETE
REALZEZRRORREMHRE

EB0BE160URNE LETE » LR R
ERBREIER > BE LHREREWILETH®
NERIM » WPBLUEBRE » THRIIREE
HFUNHERIFER > THERRERRIFEH
BHIREE ©

TR

ke iy §hs

[ERMMENN - M- % - i ]
RERm

H]_-|- -

Last year, our Annual Forum held on 24 November,
featured "Parental Emotional Education—New Driving
Force by Multi-disciplinary". We invited a parent to
share her parental pressure and how the community
and schools can further support both parents and
children to reduce emotional stress. Dr. William Chui,
a Specialist in Psychiatry, Dr. Sandra Tsang, JP,
Honorary Associate Professor and Department of
Social Work and Administration from the University
of Hong Kong, Principal Mr. Siu Tsz Leung of Lok Sin
Tong Yeung Chung Ming Primary School were the
Forum keynote speakers to explore how to enhance
parents' emotional management capabilities, reduce
parenting pressure, improve and nurture positive
parent-child relationships, protect and enable
children to thrive in a safe and happy environment.

More than 160 participants attended the Forum.
There were active discussions and sharing, and both
the keynote speakers and the participants have
inspired one another with different approaches to
parenting and parental emotional education. These
exchanges helped demonstrate a deeper understanding
of the needs of parents and aroused public’s awareness
of parental emotional education.

30 BEESNE—OLRENBP/L JOCKEY CLUB HARMONY LINK DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PREVENTION CENTRE

& T3II#R Volunteer Training

BMERBEZE THIE24NER IR EE - 71
ETEARARSN - BT HERZE T
RRE > ABEE | FEREBERT  RFBEN
kTRIE > BEIREBRMNER  ZBRRRS
HORRERBOAL o 1b5 > RPITSRIE
PEIBE ~ SRR RETES) > NsRE T H AR H) MR
BkEREBRK KT AGHMRETHIEMH
7 280ENBYERRRSTIRARTS ©

FRT BRIRRBN > HANZTERBEE
RESBIERT > OB MERRBEE - RE
B~ XELEE - AFHR T2 RORFBRHEE
UT800/\&s o MFIBI2 WA BRIt B A EHRIER
ERIVEEHE °

We regularly recruit volunteers to man our 24-hour
Women Hotline. All volunteers must complete our
basic volunteer training course before they can begin
their service. The course includes assessment and
counselling skills, service guidelines and rules etc., to
fully prepare them to help domestic violence victims.
We also organise advanced trainings and recreational
activities to enhance volunteers’ interests in
voluntary services and their sense of belonging
towards the team. Last year, our volunteers provided
280 Women Hotline support sessions.

Apart from hotline support services, our volunteers
have also helped with Harmony House service
promotion in the community, childcare and clerical
work. They contributed nearly 800 service hours last
year and their participation is paramount towards
awareness of domestic violence in the community.

W EZNEKBFKEF(L Online Self-assessment Tool

HFIREERFRENERNDE AN RERIIE
BEEZ o Ak > HFIL2011FRILMLEBEHRTE
TR > BHEARRPHERER > LUEER
SREXAERY o BF > S22 AEAE LS
Md_EEFME > WHZE109,000 \ 2 BAESHE -

{BIREHE Media Contact

HAIEETEERAPNERENF > sER - B8
RERE - BIREAREERNBFZEET
HA P WD ZEREZ TR RIRRE °
PMELEBEESR > NRARTEMRER NN
B HEIFRNBERNERENS » RBX
ALY > THERBRBIETESZRESR

HRBOAL -

We believe the ability of self-defense and
self-diagnosis are both important for prevention to
domestic violence. Thus, in 2011, we developed an
online self-assessment tool to help individuals
identify potential domestic violence risk so they can
seek professional assistance as soon as possible. Last
year, a total of 522 individuals used this online tool
and up to 109,000 individuals visited our webpage.

We often approach different media partners for
interviews on issues such as child abuse, children
witnessing domestic violence, situation of male
victims and parenting difficulties. We also share our
preventive and support services for service users.
Through media interviews, we aimed to enhance
public awareness of the prevention of domestic
violence, promote non-violent communication and
family harmony, encourage the victims of domestic
violence to proactively seek help and introduce our
services to more victims and their families.

BESE—OLREN BP0 JOCKEY CLUB HARMONY LINK DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PREVENTION CENTRE

A A

—
O]
@)
~
m
<
(@)
—
C
s 9)
I
>
~
<
o
Z
<
=
Z
~
O
o
<
m
(%]
|
@)
=
o
—
m
Z
@)
m
0
X
m
<
m
Z
4
o
Z
(@)
m
Z
—
X
m




NEEHERERTS : BEEEBYUTE

domestic violence. childhood adversity cases.

IRFEA A SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS
BRFEA A SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS

01» TEHBEES Community Education Programmes

i o)

i@ REACHING OUT TO HIGH-RISK GROUPS 3 JOCKEY CLUB PROJECT STRIDE Q

2 <

= .

1 =

= ™

cC/

S AR#5 B 4Z SERVICE OBJECTIVES AR#5 B 4Z SERVICE OBJECTIVES =

0 2

§F . . o
B " oo y = = . e . BB FREPREPREERE ~ BRAFNEVN Provid t to adults who h

_Dg b REBHIRZRZRERNIZENR UK TE ° Provide early identification and assistance to women b J\%ﬁ e res («%MB/]%%?Z &F e;c;)\:ri:nscl;Fépl?)"ssZ‘:'f\[fa':ﬁ oor 3ioLIje:c\:-:-v d?.lrire:;etheir Z

=) and children who are at risk of domestic violence. childhood to reduce the impact of their adverse %

Eﬂﬁ@ﬁﬁ%&%ﬁ\é\f’ﬁ BURFERMERRERS]  Collaborate with other NGOs and schools to host childhood experiences. g

BITELH ~ SBEFDEE) 0 EHRTEFRER NI NREKRE training workshops, educational ta”‘i and ‘ BOEREFRANONERIRIBRBEER » (REMPYS Help service users discover their inner resilience to O

ENHNE2M% o Programmez to raise Twarenesjc?n the !mpml’tance o PEEETMAL > TERBEZEERBEFEED  help them foster positive, harmonious, and caring =

preventing dating violence and domestic violence. EEITIEE ~ FOEE « RIEO9HEE o interactions in their intimate and parent-child @

& ISR RRETEP RSB RRER T © E.nhance new.immigrant.s’ understanding of domestic relationships. i

violence and its prevention methods. b RARREAIRERIRBERENEE Raise public awareness of the domestic and o)

b HNHEREE  BBREREAFTEE > REYH Provide emotiopal education programmes in intergenerational cycle of violence. é

SRENBORE © .cdollab.fc\watl.on Wf'th kmd:rge;rtﬁ!?; to er;?ble f:lall;ly REEARBEXFRRIBEFFIRELRMEZRIEE  Enhance the knowledge and the skills of o

aentitication of pre-schoof chiidren atected by TIR RO, © multi-disciplinary and professionals in handling o
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1> (ARERFHBEIRFS Case Work and Counselling Services

ARFSAET) RiEse Engk AR
Service T Number of Number of Number of . e - . . .
ervice lype Organisation(s) Session(s) Attendance £2023/24FE > HMB6SEERIEMEEEAR  In2023/24, we provided counselling services for a
TR 1 B S () 35 BB R AIE R IT B A FENY S total of 65 cases. Through individual counselling, we
. (R ES BT BN S A T AR EE A S HE A 2| 25 1 helped clients explore their childhood adversities.
Datlng(g/éczlc;a:dcaerirse(\:/ﬁggllc))n Talk 10 15 1,501 RS FE 5 40 {5 2= P36y B T%ﬂig . AWEET—?%E This involves assisting the client in describing and
': ; Z; 7 1 - 5 - - N exploring the trauma they experienced during their
INTTHER) REBEHE DIRRER © BRDBRRREREIBEMER * ighood, thereby helping them identify and
Storytelling Emotional Education 15 15 664 BDTEERRERNIEESRE  SHEEME  nderstand the emotional responses triggered by
Programme for Children FHEE » MRS EFRERIIABRRR these childhood adversities and how these emotions
HRABN LB 4 4 130 impact their daily lives, relationships, and mental

well-being. Through exploring their personal growth
in original family, they can reduce the emotional
impacts of childhood adversity, restore self-love
autonomy in their life and establish respectful and
healthy interpersonal relationships with others.

Talk for New Arrivals

ERUE- T EN
Storytelling Group for Children NA 6 39

It @RS REBEE © HEfE
FOBRENR

Holding talks for the new
arrivals to promote the message
of the harmonious family in the
community

BRBBNSNEEDHEEETREIFERETED
Providing emotional education programmes in
kindergartens through playing and storytelling
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02» 1MBTE Group Work

FMECEEFFERRIMFARERESRLE  We organised therapeutic groups for adults with
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PEECAE/NE » MBANTENES 0 B2/ A Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) centered on

HESEFANSERREBHAE > LUZ T
LR EWNRIEBERES ROVEME » WaBE
EENBERM -

4 > MAERIRST EF Y IRKROVHE LB
S0 BB Z/VEREEBMI T BREY 8
SHRE > AUMIEBARE  IIRTHECD
BYIEAE o

BEU\E

Therapeutic Groups

Family of Origin Exploration, combining family
exploration with arts-based activities. Participants
learned to utilize external resources for
self-improvement, understood the complexities of
family from diverse viewpoints, and recognised the
importance of family communication.

Additionally, we held book clubs via ZOOM helping
the group members to understand the family impacts
on their lives. They agreed that the groups fostered
their personal growth effectively and lead them to
have a deeper understanding on themselves.

RSER MABE - o

Number of Number of Number of

Service Type

B ER R/ VE
Therapeutic groups for adults with
Adverse Childhood Experiences and
virtual book clubs

Group(s) Session(s) Attendance

74 504

03 } it R E ES) Community Education Programmes

REHBHBER REHEE)

HPERE R ~ NERDIEEETHE B
BEHNERAARFZELENRERHBEARER HEE
ERBDUFREANIEMR o

HPIEMSRLE TRERE) ETHE > AR
ﬁ?u 'Rz REENZE > SREBETIHRL
RHTE  REIEZ - UBEHWBANEQHES
/i » MREHZEIE (ADHD) B F IS - BI5HR

FEETHEZZEN0E2NEE > o/ TRERE)
RSB F o

Family Education Talk and "Family Channel"

We delivered education talks at tertiary institutions,
primary schools, and kindergartens with the
objectives to increase tertiary students and parents
awareness on the intergenerational transmission of
domestic violence.

We also launched an online "Family Channel", which
regularly provides "family" related online talks for the
public. The talks delved into various topics such as
the impact of adverse childhood experiences, school
bullying, promoting positive parenting through a
strengths-based approach, and navigating the
challenges of children dealing with ADHD. On
average, each online session attracted almost 170
participants. We are delighted to see that the "Family
Channel" is welcomed by the public.

BEESE— 257590 JOCKEY CLUB HARMONY LINK DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PREVENTION CENTRE

SRl S =

AEE > BEMSIEEE - 1tI ~#HESR0
HMBIAZFZANTREREZXIET - HFIBEEFERE
H2EBITERNZEENBRIER R EEFRE
HEEE  HBTEENEXZAL 8FEE
EL  RENMTINZEERNH - DEERFHE
BEWPIRKER (ACEs) LR > WRATHRBENE
RIEENIRR » P ZFENREEEEFRTIER
BRERPMENEAR N » UM fIEE
TEE N AT R o

x|

Professional Trainings

REHEFBERFRERE

Family education talks and Family Channel

Training for Multi-disciplinary

This year, we organised professional trainings for
social work students, social workers, counselors, and
other social service professionals. We were honoured
to participate in professional knowledge-sharing
sessions with various professionals, including doctors,
nurses, school principals, and social workers, at the
Kwun Tong Service Coordination Meeting on Child
Abuse organised by the Social Welfare Department.
Through the professional training, participants
learned the concept of Adverse Childhood
Experiences (ACEs) and gained valuable insights into
the persistence of violence across generations. The
training also equipped them with essential skills and
knowledge to assess and manage ACE-related cases,
acquired proficiency in case assessment techniques,
as well as appropriate intervention and support
strategies.
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Number of Number of Number of

Service Type

REH B BERRERE
Family Educational Talk and Family Channel

Organisation(s)

Session(s) Attendance

57 4,450

SRR R ‘
Training for Multi-disciplinary

04 » FAIEEEEE Social Media Campaigns

EF > BMERE SELIRE BRIt EE
EE o EREUMESRE > B2RERFIEAEX
RN ZEMRREE - 52 EE R
BASEMNEE » LB HBHIER - ZTHER
TERENLERE  HWRRBTERT » EkiBE
160,000\ ©

s MRS T TEFBER) R LT3
RESES > SERTIERANEEENEF EOK
& (PCEs) » IREARHBEFAGHERE > HES
EEZAYNEEMNERE - HMABHKD23E
1is o MR BB90,000 A - MIREBNHIHS [EAR
HIS » WIBEBALRNT ERBIESH -

Tana F &% fetEnn -
E BT

e BELRET S

M F IR EFBERK)
"Childhood Phonograph"

"Childhood Memory Tree"

Last year, we launched an online social media
campaign "Childhood Memory Tree" aimed at
establishing community support, enabling
participants to gain mutual support and share their
growth experiences. This allowed participants to
deepen their experiences and thoughts, finding
resonance and understanding. The campaign received
positive feedback, with a total of 37 submissions and
reaching over 160,000 individuals.

On the other hand, another social media campaign
"Childhood Phonograph" highlighted positive
childhood experiences and resilience-building stories
of those who have overcome adverse childhood
experiences. It emphasized the role of supportive
figures and raised public awareness about childhood
trauma. This campaign garnered 23 submissions,
reaching over 90,000 individuals. Both campaigns
successfully resonated with audiences and
contributed to promoting personal growth and social
care awareness.

bry Moy
i w & EOTE 0 by Jennier Leurg
~ e
s wAw s e I Hw
.i-i-niim ﬁgsm f - CERR . LT Eﬁgﬂﬂ

E— DREF AP0 JOCKEY CLUB HARMONY LINK DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PREVENTION CENTRE

BB T{EH B ARTS 1R Workshops for Buddies and Service Provision

B EBNARTS REAE) "Buddies"REFHERE »
TEEFRENAL R ESETLE > & T—A
—WEFH ) OHB/NE Y BWMKREDSE - 0E
EE) S MBTIOIEH B TR U R BEEP SN ERE
2MEEF - B LIF ERRENBZREINE
B MBRNBERTRE > TEHMMERERE
& REERNDMNBERGERT > ARKESNES
IO EEBYRGE By o

TRTRE) MBERBER > IAZFRMOZIRE
& BERERELER/NE  REFBE - RED
SELURRFBEEEE/NE o MBI ERAKE
AE > BEEEEHMEEHBNEETOZNR
o MRS NEHRERENIER o TR
PN HRMEEARINRANRBEREEL
T IEEHeE o

STEIER
Project Website

Peer support service "Buddies" gathering has been
developed substantially with new members joining
and in various activities, such as co-learning group on
"Storytelling with Playback Theatre", art expression
activities, festival celebration programmes, MBTI
psychology education workshop, and mindfulness
outdoor activity. All these Buddies workshops aim to
facilitate communication, relaxation and
self-expression among member, help Buddies develop
self-awareness, expression abilities and teamwork
skills, as well as restore their inner harmony and
strengthen the balance of body-mind-spirit.

The Buddies have been actively contributed and
involved in our various services, including family of
origin therapy groups, school talks, project sharing
sessions, and service exhibition working groups. By
sharing their experiences and stories, it facilitated the
interaction and engagement among participants,
deepened participants’ understanding of their original
family. The efforts of the Buddies also left a
significant impact on the public and our service
beneficiaries.

https://www.jcprojectstride.harmonyhousehk.org/

L0
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02 MEI{E Group Work

H5T FiERin 2R
JOCKEY CLUB PROJECT OCEAN: MEN SUPPORT SERVICE

=)
~

BE /| HRF/BLieEvE Therapeutic Group for Fathers / Father &

Children / At-risk Male

STEBRATTLE NN EEH > (EMIRSME  To enhance participants’ skills and awareness of inner

HREBINE]  BAERERECEETEMN resilience, which improve the ability to cope with
BT EEH) o family pressure and educate family members to
engage in positive communication and harmonious

1}

g

BESERECTAERBNERTR B BRI ZIRETE]  The "Jockey Club Project Ocean: Men Support
B2023FE 128 18R - BASBE+RTASEAKEHE « & Service" was funded by the Hong Kong Jockey Club
RDEMATE S, > BEHEMRE A LS > s Charities Trust. It was launched on 1 December 2023.
(o1« (2EERYSE « EREEZE MK | BISHEE Nowadays, men are not only bearing the pressures of ‘ .

o o . o personal economics, identity, and status, they also Interaction.
RE o WRIASTE T BRI EIRB TBIUNE AR

i - N - face other different life challenges, including midlife
HFIABRRIRRT - TEBEEEEFTEBHEER > B rises, health problems, partner relationship conflicts, PREERE TR [ DIBME TR

i1}28
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Problem-solving and Psychoeducation

Ik PEESBUNTT GRS - BEEES S LE[EHS parenting education, and workplace relationship

FHFINLUF B AR LIRFRIC > LUSEE S T K8

BYSHA -

conflicts. The key features of this project are to
support men in building resilience and enhancing
their interpersonal relationship skills, as well as to
screen for cases with potential needs so that they
can receive appropriate social services in a timely

SERSE LIFEARRBREL KT > W05
BRAE - BRI BBRHNBRHEESE > 1t
AR RENLUE R L BB BIREIFIRZD » B
REERIR ©

Workshop

To enhance interpersonal skills at work, including
emotional self-regulation, effective communication
techniques and stress management etc., thereby
enhancing coping abilities that can be transferred
from work to family situations for improving family

manner. In order to reach more men for service
promotion, we are utilizing an outreach and online
service mode to enhance men’s willingness on help
seeking.

relationships.

03» tEHEEE Community Education Programmes

FERWAEES)  TIEHFGERE » 188 E+ By organizing different programmes, workshops and
Wit @B ENRE  EEEHNEE ) UEHER talks, we aim to enhance men’s understanding of

RS R T B E BT o social resources, improve their self-efficacy, and
educate family members to have harmonious

communication and interactions.

BR#¥E B & SERVICE OBJECTIVES

b BEHRERNABRNBHEBERN
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Cultivate resilience for men at risk of domestic
violence.

BRFEHERVEES) > BRREFRURERIE  Prevent self-defeating behavior for deescalating of
1t o family conflicts or family violence.

& NOsR1E A B REEBIEE S » (BRI BRI RER Strengthen coping capacities for betterment of family
oo relationships.

& BILBEASOBEE  EBRNEBRBIER o Enhance well-being for stress management and BB EEIVE
effective communication. Father Mutual
Support Group

FiaF
ﬂﬁﬁmg SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS Therapeutic Group for Men

01> @ BhRT C kand C lling Servi Sy
> TBRRMGHE Casework and Counselling Services 04> EHATEER11ETBARTS Short-Term “Calm Down” Accommodation Services

1£2023/24FE » BAIEBIBEBEE > BPEIER
BETYEBITREREME > MAEZETHEERS
EREHEE - KPERFBFBBELHIE 1t
TENFOWhatsApp L2 FIELE o

In 2023/24, we provided intensive counselling and
support to 9 cases, including male victims of
domestic violence and their family members. The
cases mostly encountered marital problem and
difficulties in parenting. They primarily contacted us
through our MAN Hotline, social worker’s referral and
WhatsApp.

38 EESNHE—LRERS

/Ly JOCKEY CLUB HARMONY LINK DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PREVENTION CENTRE

RENRERNAAREEHRSZIBFEEENSE
TRESZHRITRNRE #H BIEEBRER
BN RIRE » RIS ZBEERT - LURE)
ST BB EARRERMR

We provide up to 7 days of temporary "respite" hotel
accommodation and referral support to those men
who are being affected by domestic violence or
experiencing emotional distress caused by family
conflicts. Counselling services would be provided for
them at the same time helping them to rebuild their
personal and family relationships.
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Jockey Club Project Ocean:
Men Support Service
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Project Logo
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Promotion Leaflet

StEIEER
Project Website
;1 https://jcprojectocean.harmonyhousehk.org/

: WhatsApp
4605 0145

B2023F12818%2024438318 » HMERT
ZATVETEGHEE - BIEERRE - EEEL
B RFLESS » Ot @ARSHATNS B motion for public to know abou
B BER T EOEABBIED » LIpa| K project, including leaflet distribution, radio airtime,

05» EtBIEERIMERE Publicity and Promotion of the Project

During the period from 1 December 2023 to 31 March
2024, we used a variety of methods for publicity and
promotion for getting the public to know about the

and social media platforms. At the same time, we
used an eye-catching colour tone, blue and orange,
to design a Project Logo, which aims to attract the
public's attention and increase their interest in
learning about our project.

REBEENBHEANE
Promotion of the Project at the Radio Television
Hong Kong (RTHK)

RIS EEHEET N85 LR

Outreach to promote men service

EL4EE

Project Ocean

-‘E:.t:
e S ERERRS

.-iuli‘ HE Channel

40 EESFE—DLOREBDO JOCKEY CLUB HARMONY LINK DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PREVENTION CENTRE

MAN (3 ) #1448 2295 1386
MAN HOTLINE

BRFE B 4E SERVICE OBJECTIVES

FIEBMHEEBNZEIITE o

el B MEEESRERNEE -

REERERNEENS TUERRTHNANE
HRERNHEE °

REEFRNEBOS TIREISE IR R BRI

o

=il

N

REESTRMECHN AR BROVEEMRT

BRFEA A SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS

£2023/24FE > RIFSEEMAN (B1) BREIE2081ERR
FERE > EPHN02 (49%) 1B2RE A K REF /ISR

i o

vvVvvevveywey

Stop the abusive behaviour of male batterers.

Encourage male batterers to take up the
responsibility for their abusive behaviour.

Encourage men who are affected by domestic
violence to resolve their problems effectively in a
non-violent manner.

Provide emotional support and relevant community
resources to men affected by domestic violence.

Provide crisis intervention and timely counselling to
male victims of intimate partner violence.

In 2023/24, we received 208 calls through the MAN
Hotline, of which 102 (49%) were related to domestic
violence or marital problems.

B SR E ST SUMMARY OF MAN HOTLINE

Hist102{EERRER N R IEIBRIELIKEIRE

Statistics of 102 Calls Seeking Help with Domestic Violence and Marital Problems

IEIRRIZE Marital Problems

23 (22%)

B 8EFF Mutual Violence
1 (11%)

LT Female Perpetrators
°

1(1%)

ZEB T Male Victims
56 (55%)

Z[EZ T Female Victims

3 (3%)

B THEE Male Perpetrators

8 (8%)
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FOGETE
HARMONY LANE

FEER20MEMIL » URRERGHEDN - AREBES
SREEFTESNIBE > MR ER2023F10BHRTR
=1 85g IE) 1fstd)) -SE5ERERE
RERNES  BRNEIRKROVEBENRR o MR
HETEHNREBRERABRT - REREXEREFEEH R
FESNtEHELTE » URHERRERREFENRE -

PRFZ B 4E SERVICE OBJECTIVES

N &P HEH DR E R R EN @ EREE 2R R

T omxEo

‘

02 IRFRELIBHEEE « YA ERRESS o
‘

03 EHRRENELBRED - SRAIEOEENY o
<

04 HRERDEE T FRAMG ©

‘

05 BSRERITLEH S BREM o

|

06 HEESRHNEEEHRELENES

‘

07 BINARHIRE REHRBAHLESFIE -

PRFEAZS SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS

Harmony Lane was established in 2011 and is located
in Shek Lei Estate, Kwai Tsing District. With the
support of the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities
Trust, "Jockey Club Harmony Bubbles Project" was

launched in October 2023 for a period of three years.

The project aims to protect children from violence
and also address parental stress issues. Harmony
Lane provides a diverse range of services including
children's emotional education, parental education
and stress-relief activities, parent-child activities, and
community education activities to prevent child
abuse and domestic violence.

Provide early identification of at-risk children facing
domestic violence as well as at-risk parents of
parental burnout.

Enhance children's emotional health, resilience, and
self-protection abilities.

Empower parents with positive parenting skills,
self-compassion and psychological flexibility.

Enhance harmonious parent-child relationship.

To develop a child protection network at schools and
in the community.

Support schools in identifying and handling child
protection cases.

Increase public awareness and shared responsibility
for child protection.

B K E#EARFS Casework and Counselling Services

£2023/24FE » HAISHIRBNUEERER
B WRMARERARET14881HERT - &
PEIE T BN S Rl EE BRARTS o

In 2023/24, we supported a total of 25 children and
their families, providing them with 148 counselling
sessions, including individual counselling and play
therapy.

42 FO5EIE HARMONY LANE

INEAT{E Group Work

REBEHEROFRNEREEEREBENS
EMmER 0 BMMFIREIBE - ZEHEBRNEHRE
BN7EA  FRSESEEM  BMXERREER
1BHEABIE  722023/24FE » I RIS SHEE
R/ NBEUET 1@ E /A o

RENEAE > RAEEMEEE > DHIZ TE
AHERENE R TBRBERR/NE > 2
HEERRENEARTREARRRBEECS
OEBIEES » WM EBRF AR  122023/244F
E > HPISHER T 20ERE/)E ©

The Children Emotional Education and Therapeutic
Group is designed for students who have potential
domestic violence issues. It helps them understand
emotions, types of violence, and methods of
self-protection. Through art, it also allows them to
express and process negative emotions and trauma.
In 2023/24, we held a total of 13 children groups in
kindergartens and primary schools.

We offered two main parent groups, i.e. "Positive
Parenting Group" and "Self-Compassion Parent
Group" which taught parents positive parenting skills
and enhanced their ability to care for their own
well-being respectively, with the aim to improve
parent-child relationships. In 2023/24, we organized
a total of 20 parent groups.

BRASER MABE Wi e

Service Type
REBHEHE kokE

Emotional Education and Therapeutic
Group for Children

Number of Number of
Group(s) Session(s)

Number of
Attendance

104 591

ERHERKRNERERRIRRK/E
Positive Parenting Group and
Self-Compassion Parent Group

17 906

REFEEMTETERE

Children expressed emotions through art

RER/ED =5 BE T B IBE R ENRZ

Parents shared their physical reactions toward different

emotions in a group
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#5858 Educational Programmes

HPIEERARENNEER > BEBEEER
T~ BRI TE @ e E A B EN £
BRNPIERFESC o Uk > RFEEEFEHN
HELY  BEHE Wy BRSEBN (10
BRI BREBE > BE2BNBERYHEENS
ERHIERE > 2ELEBREREVGE > UIRE
FFERIRENBES -

12023/24% > BFD PR SEHHER /28
T 1A2ETHEEE) ) SHIEIBEIS 8 663 B E o

WP+ DRERRAE > BRT LR ERE
HATREZERRTRTE > BRARKEHKH
REEH - AFE > AMBEMT20RREH) -
HBBET14MURE ©

We believe that by enhancing children's inner
resources, including emotional management skills,
resilience, and social skills, they will be better
equipped to cope with adversities in life and protect
themselves. Therefore, through various educational
activities such as talks, storytelling workshops,
experiential activities, and the "Harmony Express"
mobile education vehicle, we aim to help students in
schools and kindergartens understand emotions,
learn positive ways to express emotions, and develop
self-protection skills.

In 2023/24, we held 142 educational activities in
kindergartens and primary schools, reaching up to
4,663 students.

We also place great emphasis on parent education. In
addition to positive parenting seminars, we provide
various stress-relief activities for parents to enhance
their self-care awareness. This year, we organised 52
parent activities, reaching out to 714 parents.

IR NBETAENEREE
Conducting various emotional education workshops
and supportive activities in kindergartens and primary
schools
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HiE2E ERgK N
Sﬁﬁﬁﬁzu Number of Number of Number of
ervice lype Organisation(s) Session(s) Attendance
FOEEIRIR (N2
Harmony Express (Primary School) 10 36 754
ISEHE B (1N\28)
Emotional Education Talk (Primary School) n n 1,778
BRETY ()
Experiential Workshop (Primary School) 8 22 473
R B (HHEE)
Storytelling Workshop (Kindergarten) 34 /3 1,658
REFBHEHRE 36 36 75
Parenting Talk
REEBIIFH
Parent Self-care Workshop 15 16 142
HrERIH
Parent-Child Experiential Activity 8 m 192

T£2023/24FE > WARIT T 142800 R EHBEE
8 0 HIRFE 74,663 RE - EPBR2I67TREE
TT7REFMSE - BED > FFIEIEDHIHF66.1%K
404NN ZHREXRTEEBXHYRRITR ; 5
HIET0.8%K583NNZFHEERTERRAE
SR

EIE[E)E - FFIR488REETT T HOBRIFE RS
B o BRI > 30.9NZHREHNE OERIFNE
PERE > BRETWRSHIREERERE > MEE
FI9MEEA2.4 (50- 10D RBPE) » BERIEFRIE ©

REDHENEETEEE) » 1RER
BCHSLERER

Parents participated in various
stress-relief activities to take
care of their own physical,
mental, and emotional well-being

In 2023/24, we reached out to 4,663 students in 142
sessions of emotional education programmes and
conducted risk assessments of domestic violence
with 2,967 children. According to the questionnaires,
66.1% and 40.4% of respondents witnessed quarrels
and brawls between family members respectively;
70.8% and 58.3% of respondents were scolded and
battered by family member respectively.

At the same time, we conducted a survey on
perceived burnout of 488 parents. The results
revealed that 30.9% of the respondents experienced
moderate levels of burnout, with 7% classified as
severe. The overall average score was 42.4 (a score
between 50-70 indicates moderate level). The
situation calls for attention.

S HARMONY LANE
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IS4 H S IRIZAIBIATEEST SURVEY ON EMOTIONAL EDUCATION SERVICES

Bist2,96 711 E R/ N B2 ERE

Statistics of 2,967 Questionnaires Completed by Kindergarten and Primary School Students

BERTEEEHAZ Satisfaction with the Service

72E[E% No Answer
°
108 (3.6%)
TEE Disagree
°

305 (10.3%)

[B= Agree

2,554 (86.1%)

BERTIEN T HIEEBIERE Increased Understandings toward Emotion

BB No Answer
°
100 (3.4%)

REE Disagree
°

218 (7.3%)

[EE Agree

2,649 (89.3%)

Yy 1YY

46  F03E1E HARMONY LANE

BERTATIMEE > §F 8N AEB) Seeking Help when Facing Adversity

78A[E%E No Answer
°
15 (3.9%)
[EE Disagree

360 (12.1%)

[EE Agree .
2,492 (84%)
BEREBRAWL Witnessed Quarrels between Family Members
72B[E% No Answer
71 (2.4%)
2B No
o
934 (31.5%)
B Yes
[ ]
1,962 (66.1%)
BE G HEBRAITE Witnessed Brawls between Family Members
RAB[EE No Answer
116 (3.9%)
2B No
[ ]
1,652 (55.7%)
B Yes
[}

1,199 (40.4%)
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BESHWRAE Scolded by Family Members

72A[EE No Answer

57 (1.9%)

728 No

810 (27.3%)

BE B W R AT Battered by Family Members

BB S No Answer

([ ]
53 (1.8%)

. 7258 No
1,183 (39.9%)

A Yes
°

2,100 (70.8%)

A Yes
°

1,731 (58.3%)

48 F05%1E HARMONY LANE

REB MESRIEATEET SURVEY ON EMOTIONAL EDUCATION SERVICES

Bist488M R R/ NEHRREE

Statistics of 488 Questionnaires Completed by Parents

REFOMESIER Parent - Perceived Burnout

X E Severe

34 (7%)

. $E Moderate
151 (30.9%)

IFEN TFAEIREHER) ONBXRIFREETAR

<
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B Mild
L]
303 (62.1%)

The client burnout subscale from the Copenhagen Burnout Inventory was adopted to measure parent-perceived caregiving burnout in this survey

5 R 51 F 21E3 Training for Multi-disciplinary

TR RRIERERNDNEEL > FEIEXRF
ANITHZ2E+NER - BERSFXALTEE
MZh o 815 1 Zih ~ TR ZIRBEEE > M
UK RHIERZRBZENEERENRE >
FUEMPINRANTE » WIRHBEYVIHIXIE ° [
B BEEENE 0 N05RE THE RER6V8UK
E o UREHRERENBEREZRERIS o

7£2023/245F F » FFIWM 22N FRIT - £2404
UEBRALNETNEBIRREZENRERM
PIFRTRBISIRARTS ©

To prevent and handle domestic violence cases, the
involvement and communication amongst
professionals, such as teachers, social workers and
childcare workers are crucial. This helps identify
children who are either experiencing abuse or
witnessing domestic violence at home, and provides
them with appropriate services to meet their needs.
At the same time, sharing between professionals can
also strengthen the sensitivity of workers on
detecting child abuse cases and enhance their skills
on handling such cases.

In 2023/24, we conducted 22 sessions of professional
training for 404 professional workers. We shared our
experiences on identifying children who are affected
by domestic violence and the supportive services
they need.
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2202388 » HPIERARFEABCEITIUAFEIREE A In August 2023, we held a professional seminar to IJ\ E ﬂé?&ﬁ 2751 8822
BT TET TR SMEEE N N=S » M share the project experiences and research findings.
??EI%?;%‘JE@&EH%%% o Jﬂi; N GE] Additionally, we produced a service manual on using CHILDREN HOTLINE

. CSEEEA YT B e A A storytelling, expressive art, and mindful self-compassion
ﬁ;i:fﬁfﬁfﬂ;jﬂjﬁg;&%ﬂzi%ﬁ&% Lt as intervention method for children and parents.
7 D pal (P2 iT= ©

Professionals can take it as reference and for use.
AR7%E4Z SERVICE OBJECTIVES
4
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HEXHeEg
P

:.." : 01 BRERMIEESIR - Provide emotional support for children.
_— .

02 NIRRT EHTARREER NIEVERHE o Enhance children’s understanding of domestic violence prevention.
<
02 KEHIZREXENTS Early identification of children affected by domestic violence.
4 .
o RETENRERMHEBIRS - Provide counselling services to children in need.

MRBEMHREENZE <

Professional sharing and research conference 05 ﬁtﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ%@ﬁ?ﬁfﬁﬁ% o Provide parental support to parents in need.

AR#5AE SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS

B2023/24FE > \NBRERNIGHEE In 2023/24, the Children Hotline received 3,727 calls and provided
3,727{ERE » HP38EREHESRIFIEVE 38 children with over-the-phone counselling service; covering
SERE BERNSSEBEARE 713 ~ iss:eslof Ze;sor.wlal grot\;\;th, intémzrso?al/\r/ilatiinships, e.mzti207n3s,
IEEEAEEE  BSHIREREEET > T/ school and family problems. Children's WhatsApp receive

enquiries.

BWhatsApp 6515 88228 7 273{@& 5 o

INERBHIGKEHEST SUMMARY OF CHILDREN HOTLINE

BaHH3, T27TERR R E (T ESIRRT)

Statistics from 3,727 Hotline Calls (More than one service may be selected)

D EZLEE Theme Sharing
126 (3%)
. IQ# 1Q Quiz
317.9%) BB News
Sean QR e t resd senrce manc SEan QR o  resd avluton reor A Song 1,051 (28%)
303 (8%)

. U£/EF Direct Calls
558 (15%)

B - 2 .

;ﬁ%%l]ﬁﬁ% . JINEDZ Fun Facts B F Educational Story .
roject Website o

https://www.harmonylane.harmonyhousehk.org 228 (6%) 1,144 (31 /O)
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FEREZER
FAMILY HARMONY SPACE

r0nEME OBRM) SHEIBPEIBIT (L) BIR
NE)EE) 0 FR2021 FTETBAT P/OER L T FIGE R EEZE
B BEZEATRHEEEEDD BREEEER)
Be IEEER RE—EIENVEDHARKES
o UERBEANEE - RERBEABRER o LLEtE
HEENZ it » SEIARBOEANG OERE > 1§
FoOA0ERRNS - BIFERE « HEEENE ©

PRFEL ¥ S SERVICE TARGETS

THEER  BEEXtALT

PRFZEBE4E SERVICE OBJECTIVES

¥
k|

BEBLEE 0 BRNERFERIEE > B2

2 54

o

B2 1]
HEE  IRE—@IFRNBIEQ A TK
%Qaﬂz LXT%MEI/\IH% RERNRRALR ©

oy

REERR ©

BRZTALEE) 0 SEMEABIFEES LR
HEENEF RS RIA0T rﬂo

Mgt E M EREMN S N REAE LIE
TRPARERT] o

b U T FHTSEXHESS - LURITAR

IRFEA A SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS

¥
}

The “40 Minutes@Harmony Space” project was funded by
the Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited. Family Harmony
Space was established in 2021. The Centre was located in
Yuen Long town centre, providing a place to relax, heal
and learn “compassionate communication”.
“Compassionate communication” encourages honest and
non-violent self-expressions to cope with intra/
inter-personal relationships. Ultimately, one can achieve a
balanced body-mind-spirit and take part in building a
harmonious family as well as a loving community.

Residents in Yuen Long District, including multi-cultural
communities

Enhance the awareness of one’s emotions and relieve
stress through mindful activities.

Promote compassionate communication; advocate the use
of positive and non-violent self-expression to cope with
personal emotions, family and interpersonal relationships.

Organise parent-child activities and promote respectful
parenting to build a harmonious family.

Promote racial harmony in the community through
organising multi-cultural activities.

Enhance community education on family harmony to
prevent domestic violence in Yuen Long District.

01> {BZEKEHEZEIRT Casework and Counselling Services

7£2023/24F E » RMIEHZIRTAIEBERE »
HO6A - BRI T I20NWHEMRTS 0 EFEER
BREAEESE B KERRE#HES >
A0BANRZE ©

In 2023/24, we provided 320 counselling sessions to 43
families, with 96 headcounts. Our services included
child-centred counselling with play, individual, couple and
family counselling, 403 person times reached.

02 1METI{E Group Work

‘Pﬁﬁf—%gd\‘fﬂ

EE/MMDE B8/ - SEIBNESE
EP/IE%“% VBHEET - EBNEBRIILUE
BRI ZHEER - %EﬂiﬁATmﬁjJ*HD%éﬂﬁ*@ B8
SFIRADERIL ©

ETEBYE

HADRICFEREER « ERHHEER/ NS
B[IRTERENERTEE/ N HREEBERE
RERKE » ZRARUFEENHNELQHINEKE
B3 > LUEHBAIBREIARERR o

BPVEBRNE 58 HEGENHE > &
BREREFEC > HECEBLEEE » USIFRH
BEAFHEIEC » BIAEEIRERR o

Emotion Awareness Group

Assist participants in fostering self-awareness of
feelings, focusing on the present, and in doing so,
using appropriate methods to accept and let go of
the pain triggered by past traumatic experiences.

Compassionate Communication Education

We hosted compassionate communication groups at
Family Harmony Space, kindergartens and primary
schools in the district. Targets were children, parents
and couples. We aim to advocate the use of
non-violent and positive ways of self-expression to
cope with personal emotions, family and
interpersonal relationships.

We promote respectful parenting through family
activities, encourage parents to practise self-care and
show empathy, and thus nurture children with
empathy, building harmonious family relationships.

. INAZ B ENg AR
SHEE%_SU Number of Number of Number of
ervice lype Group(s) Session(s) Attendance
R g/l 33 278
Emotion Awareness Group
SR/
Children Group 36 199
KE/NE
Parent Group 6 24
KE2/E
Couple Group 30 168

52 FOEEREZERI FAMILY HARMONY SPACE

BRESDEBRTH > OB NEGEEDBBRINEHE
Holding non-violent communication activities to deliver
compassionate communication skills to participants
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03» TtEHFEEE Community Education Programmes 05> THERHEFEE Community Harmony Education

-
>
<

BRFE%ER e EgX AR £2023/245FE > ARt RATENILE =N In 2023/24, our project organised volunteer trainings >
Servicel:l'ype Number of Number of Number of AT B TEZEETIGREZT]LEE » ] and multicultural activities for people from various T
Organisation(s) Session(s) Attendance BT & NBYFEE ST (L, » BIRTtE TR o cultural backgrounds, aiming at building a loving ;JS
RIRFEIE community together. <
7 8 154 ©)
Parent Talk 5
ZRallCE 3ol - AT = i AZR %
=)l “ R
Training for Multi-disciplinary 14 8 354 SHE?%&_,FSJ Number of Number of Number of %
Professionals ervice lype Organisation(s) Session(s) Attendance m
2= T 5|45
=LAl 1 12 7
Volunteer Training
Z AL HERES)
N \ . Multicultural Harmony Activities NA 40 313
- - DEEXKTE
- v R 6 26 1,228
. armony Tour
4

AR EER SRHEEA LTS

Professional Training at Family Harmony Space

04 » FOSEOEATE Harmony Corner

MERETEER AKX BB ALTH Family Harmony Space utilized the “five senses
E—EEEHODNRIEEEERZZTZR o oL concept” to create a space for the community to
KEREBDRTE > RORIEHIEY ~ T practise mindfulness and deal with their negative
e s - ions. Decorated with greenery, soft music and
sz ¥ 20 =63 12 43 emotions g Y,
éfigﬁf&iﬁ%ijﬁ%u\ﬁng?} F:%%% E natural elements, the Centre provides a pleasant
)  F EXEI 5D ERRER o

atmosphere for the community to relax, encouraging
everyone to achieve a balanced body-mind-spirit.

12023/24FE » I —HEBITT73238FH > & In 2023/24, we §onducted 323 seésions ofdifFerer?t AT BRI S T BSES) > TS R
FBHRFEAR BLOEE s EMIIE2EE - 1B activities, including storytelling, mindfulness exercise, Providing multicultural activities for families from various cultural

backgrounds to fulfill racial harmony in the community

SEBE > 751 T6OANDE o art and horticulture experience and festival
celebration etc., reached 1,769 person times in total.

B[RETIR > E—FRHREEERTEE
Organising volunteer training, further promote compassionate
communication in the community

06 » ZBIALFE > EEERBEEERE Connecting Needy Families via Multiple Platforms

HPIREABREREN > BEAREJLUFEE  In order to reach more potential service users and
B S y Fot A A N rovide better accessibility, the project used different
RIEERHRMANERS > PAREBRERSRK P y, the proj
Whatsappiit ZSBEAES ~ it 518 B2 Facebookfl platforms to increase exposure and influence. These
included advertisement boards, WhatsA
,L\ “EJ- = EO g,_jj\: Inc ) pp;
I o - |ns_tagrar;1| \/(Eéﬂ?ﬂﬁ_‘%/;g #Eﬁ 5_22?7 Facebook, Instagram and project webpage. This year,
OBDREEEREASH O RN AE  EAZIIS S LR EE AR BRI TSN ITIRAS > 3,665\ X B we have reached 22,827 and 3,665 via social media

Enhance the balance of body-mind-spirit through various mindful activities at e
Harmony Corner BT EIELS o

and webpage accordingly.
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07 } HhRE 2 &84 Publication of Non-violent Communication (NVC) Resources SR SHREIF R BBOEMMRISIBRANIE  Research recommended that there are still great

BRERZER > Bt - HASRIEEITRANHEES  room for the development of
2 =z oaE v voss o — .. ZEE LS RES D « (BERENESEE o nonviolent-communication-related service. We
= 2B BNEEF (B2hR) NVC Game Cards (2nd Edition) 18 &= would continue to promote non-violent
ERBBERFEREATEND > B—hRHE800E  The st edition NVC game card was a big hit and 800 communication in the community, in order to prevent
2EORSE ) WAHEE R SR T6RERETF sets were all distributed. Therefore, we released the domestic violence and promote family harmony.

RAEEE £ > EHLEREIE T HBONGEENEY 2nd edition, with revision by adding 6 "Feeling" cards

s, NSRS TR 5 and 4 "Need" cards. Mindful activities and practices
Eﬁﬁiﬁiiﬁﬁ BRRAZNERZNARE & of love language are newly added at the back of each
BITRE T D °

card, hoping to encourage more sharing of feelings
and needs among families and foster intimate family

E ﬁ % 'ﬁﬁ@:ﬁ- =) relationships.
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Scan QR code to read research report

EREBEEF (BTHR)
NVC Game Cards (2nd Edition)

CSRERRK) EZEEHE Little Ant is Approaching NVC Animated Video
I CNSEEOR) SREEMS T ANE N\ I5E “Little Ant is Approaching” NVC animated video
((3E§jjl§ Eﬁi*ﬂg E%YEBa'f%» EH%%&% Non-violent Communication and Harmony E{];‘:E% , @Jéjb%ﬁﬁ%%$iﬁ@ ;EE;%{H,@E captures an encounter of a boy and an ant. Many
Family Relationship Research Report =aHEDb Eﬁiﬂéﬁ—H%}ﬁd\%ﬁﬁ—@:@:ﬁi&mlb Hong Kong cultural elements are inserted in the story
HMNEESBRCAZSIEETRIAMENSMIAZK  We conducted a 2-year study in collaboration with RFFZ o EEEEWIRRIEL » SENPEELE that |oca|' readers would resonate with it.
BEEERGES » TR T GER T EREMZRE Hong Kong Shue Yan University and published the BEAMN > ERFA %’JHHEIBUJ\E’J,_\QEFDEEEE% ) Compassionate communication suggested that when

people communicate heartfully and connect with one
another’s feelings and needs, natural compassion

BeENES) > @EBREBNCUTEERLETPER flourished. Compassionate dialogues between

RIR) FRZRERLE o "Non-violent Communication and Harmony Family ERGIELES « EENHILRINE  BBA

Relationship" research report.

IR SRR Research findings suggested that EEEE o FECHYE TBIERHELRA » K25 characters demonstrated the possibility of the
(1) BAMNEEERTFIEHERRE &g%éy (1) One-off NVC workshop is beneficial for parents, AETERIL R BEE o natural use of NVCin eve'ryday Iife. Public can 'enjoy
FIHRRIEEHEES EEBER *7] especially NVC beginners, in increasing b.oth Cantonese and English versions of the animated
Ea Ly AE S I ngﬂﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ&u self-awareness of their own parenting style and video on our webpage.
BESIE S B SR TS o o ?E!’lr;ing NVC throt:cfh s.elf—.ref.lection.. .
- \ A 1 4kt 0 ildren group is effective in improving children’s — — . — R
2 %%ﬂ%ﬂ%ﬂm?%iﬁ’]gﬁgfgfﬁ REEEE ability in observing and empathizing people’s
SRR (IR BER B TR 2R A B9 feclings. R T i
= . R Atk G Lrie et APFe
= (3) Parents group is effective in cultivating e W fIC s Rt N
Q) RE/NEHNER FHELNBBEEIN K non-judgmental attitude, understanding, and . 5 =2
EREDIFHANREE EERETINTE » IBiR mutuality in parent-child relationship. Parents - =2
=T s B = started to distinguish the difference between
fi?ﬂ’luxﬁ FE - FRREEHOXTFZE request and demand. OMESERR) EEEEHE
EBCORAR 0 LRHEHEEEEE BEEE N0 e - . P ——— i Little Ant is Approaching NVC
~ (4) Participants in couples group understood the ¥ = S Animated Vid
_E/jﬁj%J . . . . ] . nimate 1aeo
o importance of active listening in their spousal
(4) XE/HEE2REBHBBRUBRFERZA relationship and showed greater awareness of
FENEEN o R T BEEEXZRMEN > 5 self-care. They were willing to take initiative
PR TR EBE AR » FBE B T expressing their needs and feelings clearly and
EUHEGEREEDNEE  BE T ERS concisely to their partners.
CHEH ©

STEIHEE Project Website
https://harmonyspace.harmonyhousehk.org/

3( n AEREZEM
Family Harmony Space
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1£E51E COLLABORATION z

AREHR2023/24FE » BEAVHEOHBRAL > UBETH » BT FHASRY > HEERREFEIRE In 2023/24, we received various donations from many benevolent organisations and individuals. They have supported
SRR REIEE) » THEREIER| ELMRESE - FIHEESK | o s S — S =N BA our services and jointly assisted families affected by domestic violence that fully embody our spirit of "Kindle Light of
IRERERREIED  RORES TEMEL  NRER) - Ek - BREET-RROESHFEZHASRED jointly y y embody our sp g
At~ kR @EE o Hope * Foster Family Harmony". Once again, we would like to express our heartfelt thanks to all our supporters.

@ & A Plastic Ocean Foundation EBIHMNREZS — B mEREERENREERZ R °

Thank you to A Plastic Ocean Foundation for sponsoring a family movie night which was fully enjoyed by our service users.

Faith Charity FoundationE)5AA S DK MR EAE—RITR B - WIBHEY kB EARARHSIHELZNE B4 EH o
Our service users enjoyed singing and games with Faith Charity Foundation at our Centre. They donated food and daily necessities to alleviate
service users’ daily expenses.

&3 COTY Hong Kong 895255 » BFEIBEIR IR &1 > MEUMIRBNR ER BT ERIFHNREAL BB Rk tias » UEEr

@ AR RuSE BEFL! BEBFHBTL 0BRSS - BESRURERARNEIIRS - RS HEIEREEN -

Thank you for the support of COTY Hong Kong, in response to International Women's Day. They donated various brands of cleansers, @ Thank you for the continuous support of the Rotary Club of Wan Chai who has organised a Christmas Party for the discharged
moisturizers and cosmetics to our abused women, which could enhance their image, and rebuild their self-confidence to start a new life! women and their family members to share the joy of the festive season.
a5t SHELTER Athletics BARSENULEREMBERFELE - HIIEERBEEABERAZ M S A B PINEE - igfliEin » B8 RS EE T Ae D EER303E I8 » BB EEF R LW BE o

@ B PIE RS O A LEEHRLLETS © Thank you to Lions Clubs International, District 303, Hong Kong, Macau and China, for sponsoring a series of floral workshops to
Thank you to SHELTER Athletics for raising funds to echo and celebrate International Women’s Day. We believe our service users feel enhance our women’s skills and self-confidence.
supported, blessed and accepted in the community, which also gives them confidence and hope for the future.

= i @ RABRE HNIRERE > BRPBUEFES BIEETR » SEARF HR AHR—E » —EEEEE ©

A EEN SRR LEEEAGS SIS EELELRE  BRHA o AERERASNIRERE > ROSUETENE BENETTS > BRBEABRARATUHLR—Z » —FEEEES

m@@ We are grateful for the generosity of individual donors who enabled us to organise celebration parties for our service users and

Christie's raised funds through a staff Bake Sale to assist female survivors in overcoming their trauma and rebuilding their lives. . 4 . ;
their families to enjoy the festive season together.

@ & Central Church ZIEZ ER UL EETIEE S ©

Thank you to Central Church for helping the abused women release their stress through a floral workshop.
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The Reports and Statements presented in following
pages are extracted from the Audited Financial
Statements of Harmony House Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2024. These should be read in
conjunction with notes to the financial statements which
can be viewed, together with the full set of Audited
Financial Statements, on the Company's website
www.harmonyhousehk.org
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The Annual Financial Report (AFR) prepared in accordance with the requirements as set out by the Social Welfare
Department Lump Sum Grant Manual can be viewed on the Company's website www.harmonyhousehk.org.

HARMONY HOUSE LIMITED
(Fosd = KA R3]

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors have the pleasure of presenting their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of Harmony House Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended 31 March
2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is to provide comprehensive services to individuals and
families affected by domestic violence including a rent free shelter for abused women and
children. Over the years, we have expanded our work to inciude therapeutic and preventative
services that aim to help domestic violence victims of all genders and races with the goal of
promoting harmonious family relationships. In addition, our activities also include community
education, school outreach, crisis intervention, case counselling, supportive group therapy,
hotline services, training to multi-disciplinary professionals, and advocacy for policies and
legislations changes on behalf of victims of violence, their families and communities.

The shelter premises are provided by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial performance of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 and the financial
position of the Company as at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 10 to 44.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Dr. Kam Chak Wah (Chairperson)
Ms. Chui Chi Yan Daisy (Vice - Chairperson)
Ms. Chan Ching Lan Jean

Dr. Chan Tak Mau

Dr. Chui Wing Ho William

Mrs. Crosbie-Walsh Penny Soh Peng
Dr. Ho Choi Wa

Mrs. Koo Au Cheuk Ming Anna

Prof. Lam Ching Man

Mr. Leung Hong Shun Alexander
Ms. Leung Ka Lo Caroline

Mr. Ng Shan Yung

Ms. Wong Hing Chun

Ms. Wong Wai Man Deanna

Ms. Wong Wai Yee Louisa

Prof. Wong Yuen Ha

Ms. Yu Suk Wai

(resigned on 12 September 2024)
(resigned on 3 June 2023)

(appointed on 3 June 2023}

{(appointed on 3 June 2023)

{(appointed on 24 September 2024)
(retired on 24 November 2023)

(appointed on 4 June 2024)
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HARMONY HOUSE LIMITED
(FwiZ KA R 8)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

In accordance with Article 43 of the Company’s Articles of Association for Rotation of Directors,
the following director shall retire and being eligible, may offer themselves for re-election for the
forthcoming year:

Ms. Chui Chi Yan Daisy

Mrs. Crosbie-Walsh Penny Soh Peng
Mrs. Koo Au Cheuk Ming Anna

Mr. Leung Hong Shun Alexander

In accardance with Article 36 of the Company’s Articles of Association for Directors, the following
directors shall retire and being eligible, may offer themselves for re-election for the forthcoming
year:

Mr. Ng Shan Yung
Ms. Yu Suk Wai

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director of the Company or an entity connected
with a director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the
end of the financial year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

BI75ERE FINANCIAL REPORTS

HARMONY HOUSE LIMITED
(Fuig 2 A R d))

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Established in 1985, Harmony House {(*HH” or the “Agency”) is a social service organization that is
committed to eradicate domestic violence and promote harmonious and healthy family
relationships. The Agency provides services and assistance to individuals and families that have
encountered domestic violence and helps to raise community awareness on the importance of
prevention, in our four service centres (one of which is a shelter), via three hotlines and through
one mobile vehicle.

*  The Shelter offers 73 beds (accommodation) and “after care” support, after departure from
the Shelter, to battered women and their children, and girls from at-risk families.

=  The Jockey Club Harmoany Link Domestic Viclence Prevention Centre provides therapeutic
services to victims, batterers, children witnessing domestic violence, and other services such
as arrangement of short-term accommadation for men facing family crisis, community
education, training to multi-disciplinary professionals, and advecacy for polices and
legislation changes that provides better support to victims of domestic violence.

u Harmony Lane Centre and the education “mobile truck” conduct outreach activities and
programmes in schools for early identification of suspected child abuse victims and to
promote child protection through parenting education.

*  Family Harmony Space Centre promotes non-violent communication to improve family
harmony for conflictual families of diverse cultural background and locals in Yuen Long.

= A 24-hour Woman Hotline, a Man Hotline and a Children Hotline offer crisis counselling and
emotional support to those in need.

In the past year, HH has served 183,800 person-times through various services and projects offered
to the different communities. The Shelter received over 8,400 calls and accommodated 330
abused women and children. The 24-hour Woman Hotline continues to provide immediate
emotional support to those in need, and when abused victims check into the Shelter, they will also
receive other supports such as contingency safety plan, vital information and relevant community
resources. Victims with children also receive childcare support at the Shelter.

The Jockey Club “Harmony Bubbles” project launched in October 2023, with child protection
service in mind, has reached out to over 4,600 school students on emotion education and
approximately 2,500 of these students have participated in the risk assessment of domestic
violence. Project 40 Minutes @ Harmony Space promotes and conducts non-violent communication
education, provides trauma support work to individuals who had adverse childhood experiences
and supportive service to men, with over 7,000 individuals benefited from the inspiring
programmes and case counselling sessions. Qur community education service and training for
professionals have made significant impact to cover over 300 organizations including kindergartens,
schools, government departments, NGOs and corporations on anti-domestic violence prevention.
Another Jockey Club funded program, Project Stride, since commencing in October 2022
continued to help adults recover from their childhood traumatic domestic violence experience.
The “Family Channel” in this project which is an online platform that delivers 24 sessions of family
life education, had reached viewership of over 3,146,
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HARMONY HOUSE LIMITED
(Fodt 2z FH RN E])

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW - Continued

Financial Performance

HH’s primary source of funds for the year was the subvention from the Social Welfare Department
(“SWD”). Other ongoing funders included the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (“HKJC”),
which is one of the Agency’s major funders, the Community Chest of Hong Kong, Bank of China
(Hong Kong) Limited, Zonta Club of Kowloon, Help for Children, other corporate donors and
individuals.

During the year, HKJC approved an additional $16.18 million of funding to sponsor a new 3-year
service, Project Harmony Bubbles which aims at child protection. The Zonta Club of Kowloon also
donated $160,000 to fund a 2-year project that provides support to new admission at the shelter.

Corporate Governance

The Agency has complied with all the requirements stipulated in the Social Welfare Department’s
Lump Sum Grant Manual, Lotteries Fund Manual, 16 Service Quality Standards (5Q5) and Funding
Service Agreement. Our Board of Directors (the “Board”)}, comprised of professionals from
different disciplines and experiences, works closely with the senior management team to ensure
that HH follows and applies the relevant legal obligations, including the Employment Ordinance
and Personal Data {Privacy) Ordinance, in the operation of all its service units.

The five Board Committees, namely Staffing Committee, Finance Committee, Governance
Committee, Service Development Management Committee and Renovation Committee have been
delegated with the roles and responsibilities to improve HH's service provision, risk management,
corporate governance, financial accountability and environmental safety.

Key relationships

(i) Service users
Our service users are mainly from abused families and at-risk families with conflicts. We
serve all races and religions. Our service targets are abused women and their children, male
and female batterers, male victims, abused elders, children witnessing domestic violence,
parents facing parenting difficulties, abused children and the general public that would
benefit from learning about domestic violence prevention and promotion of family harmony.

(ii) Community stakeholders
The support of other community professionals is crucial to combating domestic violence.
Cngoing collaboration with police, lawyers, medical practitioners, nurses, social workers,
counsellors, teachers and academia are important work that the Agency engages in to enable
us to better help abused families.

(iii) Staff
As of 31 March 2024, we have a solid workforce of over 50 staff, comprising of Social Workers,
Counsellors, Counselling Psychologists, Accounting and Information Technology professionals,
and administrative and support staff to help deliver quality services and maintain efficiency
in operating and running the Agency.

BI75ERE FINANCIAL REPORTS

HARMONY HOUSE LIMITED
(Fodk 2 A M a))

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW - Continued

(iv) Funders and external parties

The Agency works closely with government departments, funders and strategic partners to
provide services to benefit those affected by domestic violence and the community as a
whole. Throughout the year, our management and service unit supervisors joined a number
of committees and working groups of different nature, run by the Social Welfare Department
and Hong Kong Council of Social Service, to advocate for policies and service development
relating to domestic violence issues. With these dedications, HH is continuous visioning in
building a harmonious community without violence.

Principal challenges and uncertainties

Over the years, the Agency has strived to increase services that provide more supportive and
preventative measures and these are non-subvented projects which require ongoing funding.
Sourcing and obtaining such fundings present uncertainties and challenges on service planning and
sustainability. Project 40 Minutes @ Harmony Space sponsored by the Bank of China (HK)
Charitable Foundation will come to an end in December 2024. The Agency must actively seek new
funding to sustain the centre and the services that are provided to Yuen Long and surrounding
communities so that service users can continue to benefit from non-violent communication
techniques.

The implementation of new approach to the apportionment of central administrative costs for
non-subvented services starting from April 2024 will pose pressure on HH to source more
unrestricted funding. We will need to use different approaches and strategies to secure more
stable ongoing funding and also impart on funders the importance of their support to central
administrative costs with increase to the amounts allocated to those expenses.

Manpower shortage continued to hit hard on the Agency’s operation last year. We are grateful for
the concerted efforts of our staff who did their best to maintain the guality of services and
proactively partnered with various community collaborators. The retention of a quality and stable
workforce will continue to be challenging under a tabour market of imbalance supply of social
workers in the coming years. The Board, Staffing Committee and senior management will continue
to work closely on providing and adopting a working environment that attracts and retains talents,
provides good staff training, and plan for transferring of knowledge and experience across the
different service units.

Future Focus

Child abuse cases continue to emerge during the year in alarming numbers and warrants HH’s
attention. With the imminent implementation of mandatory reporting of suspected child abuse in
early 2026, HH plans to strengthen staff’s knowledge and skills for early detection of suspected
child abuse and be prepared to be able to provide timely assistance to children who are at risk of
violence. We will explore more resources and expand our school screening services on children and
parenting education to support the needy families, school personnel, community organizations
and the general public to protect our young generations from all forms of harm.
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HARMONY HOUSE LIMITED
(Fodb 2 RA R E))

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW - Continued

The supportive service for men is also our paramount concern. The 3-year HKJC sponsored Project
Ocean launched at the end of 2023, through collaboration with different community partners, has
successfully outreached to this important target group in high risks districts of Tin Shui Wai, Sham
Shui Po and Kwun Tong. We hope to be able to establish connection with them so that they will
seek immediate help at times of crisis, and to boost their resilience and general well-being to
decrease the risk of domestic abuse.

Raising community awareness on identifying abusive relationships is crucial to protect individuals
and families from tragedies. We plan to put out an enhanced and more user-friendly “intimate
partner violence risk self-assessment” on the Agency’s website which will hopefully encourage
more of the public to practice self-protection and help seeking behavior. The data collected will
also help HH to pace the need and develop more effective domestic violence prevention services.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
re-appoint the auditor, BDO Limited.

On behalfof the directors

Dr. Kam Chak Wah
Director

Hong Kong, 24 September 2024

Tel : +852 2218 8288 25" Floor Wing On Centre
B DO Fax: +852 2815 2239 111 Connaught Road Central
www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
e — e
Bafi © +852 2218 8288 e EP 11198
{8H - +852 2815 2239 skZedhih 2548

www,bdo.com.hk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HARMONY HOUSE LIMITED

(Fodg 2 A R a))

(incorporated in Hong Kong as a company limited by guarantee)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Harmony House Limited (the “Company”} set out on
pages 10 to 44, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in total
funds and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 March 2024 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™} and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by
the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” ({the “Code™}, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the directors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

-7

BDO Limited
SN2 ERREHMEEAERLA

BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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IBDO

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HARMONY HOUSE LIMITED

(Fog = AR 3F))

(incorporated in Hong Kong as a company limited by guarantee)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internat control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basfs of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any ather person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than far one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

IBDO

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HARMONY HOUSE LIMITED

(Fodbz FH R N3])

(incorporated in Hong Kong as a company limited by guarantee)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements - Continued

e obtain an understanding of intermal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

» conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

1O\

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Law Fung Ha

Practising Certificate Number P03958

Hong Kong, 24 September 2024
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HARMONY HOUSE LIMITED
(Fo3d2 A R 2 3])

AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

Notes

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12
Right-of -use assets 13

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Utility deposits and prepayments
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Total current assets
Total assets

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accruals
Amount payable to Social Welfare Department 14
Lease liabilities 15
Staff provident fund balance ) 16
Donations for specific purposes 17
Cash advance from HKJC
Cash advance from BOCHK
Lotteries fund balance 18
Deferred income for capital grants 19

Total current liabilities
Net current assets

Non-current liability
Lease liabilities 15

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

-12 -

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HARMONY HOUSE LIMITED
(Fr 2 FH RN E)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

2024 2023
HK$ HKS$
724,572 1,170,898
956,163 841,789

1,680,735 2,012,687
589,859 544,456
4,163,109 5,614,704

16,828,745 13,641,628

21,581,713 19,800,788

23,262,448 21,813,475

2,112,773 1,630,161
4,064 16,064
705,213 562,234
1,362,342 1,306,641
7,755,428 6,954,759
4,282 445 4,249,421
333,429 169,160
1,642,867 1,582,320
724,572 1,170,898
18,923,133 17,641,658
2,658,580 2,159,130
250,950 279,555
19,174,083 17,921,213
4,088,365 3,892,262

BI75ERE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Notes 2024 2023
HK$ HK$
Represented by:
Capital 21 354,911 354,911
Specific funds 22 426,064 430,809
Lump sum grant reserve 23 2,645,111 2,533,338
Accumulated funds 24 662,279 573,204
TOTAL FUNDS 4,088,365 3,892,262
On behalf of the directors
(A~
Dr. Kam Chak Wah Mrs, Crosbie-Walsh Penny Soh Peng
Director / Director

<13 -
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HARMONY HOUSE LIMITED HARMONY HOUSE LIMITED
(ot 2 ZH R d) (Fod 2 FH M)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TOTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
2024 2023
Lump sum HK$ HKS$
Specific grant Accumulated
Capital funds reserve funds Total Cash flows from operating activities
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS Net surplus for the year 200,848 814,364
Adjustments for:
At 1 April 2022 354,911 464,239 1,787,098 504,580 3,110,828 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 853,589 758,253
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 611,073 552,047
Net surplus for the year - - - 814,804 814,864 Interest expense on lease liabilities 34,409 53,737
Capital grants recognised as income {853,589) (758,253)
Transfers (note 23 & 24) - - 746,240 (746,240) - Interest income {132,778) (30,439)
Fund utilised (note 22) - {33,430) - - (33,430) Operating profit before working capital changes 713,552 1,390,209
(Increase)/decrease in utility deposits and prepayments (45,403) 85,166
At 1 April 2023 354,911 430,309 2,533,338 573,204 3,892,262 Decrease in other receivables 1,451,595 24,389
Increase in accounts payable and accruals 482,612 70,525
Net surplus for the year - . - 200,848 200,848 Increase in amount payable to Social Welfare Department 4,064 16,064
Increase in staff provident fund balance 55,701 39,643
Transfers (note 23 & 24) - - 111,773 (111,773) - Increase in donations for specific purposes 800,669 658,156
Increase in cash advance from HKJC 33,024 1,513,357
Fund utilised (note 22) - (4,745) - - {4,745) Increase/(decrease) in cash advance from BOCHK 164,269 (1,287,745)
Increase in lotteries fund balance 60,547 155,267
At 3t March 2024 354,911 426,064 2,645,111 662,279 4,088,365 Decrease in staff development fund (4,745) (33,430)
Net cash from operating activities 3,715,885 2,681,601
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (407,263) (86,992)
Interest received 132,778 30,439
Net cash used in investing activities (274,485) (56,553)
Cash flows from financing activities
Capital grants received 407,263 86,992
Clawback by SWD (16,064) (16,064)
Repayment of principal portion of the lease liabilities (611,073) (552,047)
Interest paid on lease liabilities (34,409) (53,737)
Net cash used in financing activities (254,283) (534,856)
-14- -15 -
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B17%ERS FINANCIAL REPORTS

HARMONY HOUSE LIMITED
(o Z FAMNE)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Net fncrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash available on demand

-16 -

2024 2023
HKS$ HK$
3,187,117 2,090,192
13,641,628 11,551,436
16,828,745 13,641,628
16,828,745 13,641,628

78 Bi#RE FINANCIAL REPORTS
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We would like to express our most sincere thanks to the following government departments, groups,
organisations, corporates, schools and donors for their generous support during the past year.

@ EYAFERPI Government Departments

@

BB SHTGRGME

BERERR REEHEE

et BRSES
Tt Eiat B RERER TERER

K& / B8 / 23] Organisations/ Groups / Corporates

A Plastic Ocean Foundation

AXA Hong Kong and Macau

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Box of Hope

Hong Kong Central Church Limited
(FFTLdu)

Charitable Choice Limited

Chen Yang Foo Oi Foundation Limited
Christie's Hong Kong Limited
COTY Hong Kong

Disneyland Hong Kong

D'jago Limited

Faith Charity Foundation

Giving Hand Limited

Helping Hand

Hong Kong Ladies Tennis League
HSBC (Hong Kong)

B Schools

REEHE FRBOR)
PEEEHEESERNRZEM
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Mayer Brown

Morgan Stanley

Ng Teng Fong Charitable Foundation Limited
Partners Capital Asia Limited

Rotary Club of Wanchai

Simply Giving PTE. Limited

Sino Land Company Limited

Sunshine Action

The Amber Foundation Limited

The Community Chest of Hong Kong

The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited
(Towngas)

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
The Samaritans

The Shamdasani Foundation

UA Global Sourcing Limited

Zonta Club of Kowloon
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Zonta Club of New Territories ||
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{BA Individual

Ada

Au Kai Hin

Chan Fung Ping

Chan Hin Bun

Chan Ka Hing Arnold
Chan Kin Leung

Chan Pui Leung

Chan Pui Sze

Chan Shuk Man Scarlet
Chan Wing Sun

Chan Wing Sze

Chan Ya King

Chan Yee Wah

Chan Yee Shek

Chan Yin Cheung Hadrian
Chan Yin Ling Bernice
Chan Yin Tung Sophia
Joman Cheng
Cheung Chit

Cheung Lai Ping Pat
WC Cheung

Cheung Yin Ting
Chim Chun Sing
Ching Sau Hong Kevin
Chiu Ling Yan

Chiu Yau Sim

Choi Wai Ching Helen
Chow Ka Ying

Chow Yuen Ping

Chu Po Ki Pretty
Terence Cope

DFT

Fu lo Wai

Fung Ching Wan
Almond Rae Gagni

@ BIE{K1F Media Partners

HKO1
on.ccERAfY
AN

Murielle Gardret
Geoffrey Jayson
Hamami Charmie
Hau Sin Han

Ho Chun Wai

Ho Pui Chung Angus
Hsu Si Won Sharon
Hung Cheung Wo

lu Siu Wan

Ko Woo Shin Ching Patricia
Kong Shu Sing

Ku Wai Shan

Kwan Ka Po

Kwok Dominic Kai Kuan
Kwok Miu Yee
Christina Kwok

Lai Chun Yue

Lam Cheung Wai
Lam Hay Yin

Lam Lun See

Lam Ping Yuk

Lam Pui Shan

Lam Wai Hung
Christine Lau
Barbara Lee

Lee Koon Shing

Lee Lai Mei

Lee Pik Shan

Lee Wai Fan

Rick Leung

Ronald Leung

Leung Ho Piu

Leung Ka Wing
Leung Po Man
Leung Ronald Ka Wai
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(UL EHERZ R 5% In no particular order)

Leung Stephenie Lai Chu
Leung Tsz Kit

Li Chi Ho

Raymond Lo

Lo ChiYin

Lo Kin Ying

Lui Yim Ngan Joyce
Joanne Mak

Mio Chi Mei

Mok Pui Wan Aza
Grace Mook

Roy Ng

Ng Kwong

Ng So Shan Susan

Ng Wing Fai

Pao Lai Kuen

Prakash S Mehra V' S
Sophonpanich Prapavadee
R&DPLTA

Rozario Rohit De

Shum Chun Wah Simon
Shum Wing Yum Audrey
Siu Tze Hing Noreen
Benjamin So

So Kap Yung

So Lap Ching

So Lok Ling Esther

So Sin Ying

Tam Woon Ho

Tang Chui Sum Helen
Tsang Wing Yu Novel

D Tyggt

Vivian Tzeng

Wacker Matthias

Wah Ka Yin
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EMEREER
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ChBREFEMDS
CHEBRBEROLRPE
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HEEEEPE
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FEFIELPE
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REDS

KEZI PP
BROMARPE
EaHE0Ek
EBEXEHELR (VBOR)
ERFEHELMR (RRULOK)
BREEEEER
BHERE

ECRIS O,
BHRGRS
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EBHEREP
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Shita Wan

Wan Ngok Wah

Wan Siu Kam

Lydia Welham

Rachel Wong

Wong Hei Tung Claudia
Wong Hoi Ling

Wong Hoi Shan

Wong Ka Yan

Wong Lai San

Wong Tsz Shan

Wong Wai Man Deanna
Wong Ying Ting

Woo Pui Shan

Wraight David John
Kitty Yau

Yeung Po Man Bossman
Yip Ho Lan

Yiu Kam Fan

Yuen Kai Long
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48 B ¥ CONTACT INFORMATION /(/b

MEEZ R

Harmony House Limited

© st
Address
BE Tel
fEE Fax
EES Email

@ HIE Website

X @ 6

NREBUBRE () IR EEM T BE

Wing B, G/F, On Wah House, Lok Wah (South) Estate, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
2342 0072

23047783

hhl@harmonyhousehk.org

www.harmonyhousehk.org

BEENE—OREMBPO
Jockey Club Harmony Link Domestic Violence Prevention Centre

© bt
Address
B5E Tel
8 Fax
B HES Email

X @ ©)

IE R REREE PO

NBEBRIBRE () WL EBUM TBE

Wing B, G/F, On Wah House, Lok Wah (South) Estate, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
2342 0072

2304 7783

hhcerc@harmonyhousehk.org

Shelter for Women and Children

© s@Enshit
Correspondence address

© 24/ NEFIR LR B BR
24-hour Women Hotline

15 {BE Fax

<9 BES Email

Hk
Address
BEE Tel
{EE Fax
B HES Email

MEREZM
Family Harmony Space

© ot
Address

BE T
HE Fax
B HES Email

X @ ©)

FLBESS D IB EBEEFE9906857
P.O. Box 99068, Tsim Sha Tsui Post Office, Kowloon
2522 0434

2336 5842
hhshelter@harmonyhousehk.org

MREROE (—) OB TIB2-3E

Rm B2-3, G/F, Shek On House, Shek Lei (1) Estate, Kwai Chung, New Territories
3153 5712

3153 5715

harmonylane@harmonyhousehk.org

R TTEARTFAT2-8AEABHE (JuBA) B KE1018A=E
Unit A, 10/F, Tai Hung Fai (Yuen Long) Commercial Building, 2-8 Tai Cheung Street,
Yuen Long, New Territories

2718 8821
2506 2362
harmonyspace@harmonyhousehk.org
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S~ —
24/ N\BFIF LK B BUER MAN (88 *) 8§
24-hour Women Hotline MAN Hotline

2522 0434 22951386

LNl 2 %

S HARMONY HOUSE

HARMONY HOUSE

© hEEBRERE (R) PR ERM TBE
Wing B, G/F, On Wah House, Lok Wah (South) Estate,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon

© 23420072
12 23047783
B hhl@harmonyhousehk.org

@ www.harmonyhousehk.org

Website Facebook Youtube

Q) iamnERsmH
Subsidised Service by the Social Welfare Department

A A

NBRERUR

Children Hotline

2751 8822

B AN 54
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